PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Date:

Tuesday 7 February 2017

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Bolney Meadow Community Centre, 31 Bolney Street, London, SW8 1EZ

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Bernard Gentry, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Diana Morris
(Deputy Chair), Councillor Mohammed Seedat, Councillor Joanne Simpson and Councillor Clair Wilcox
(Chair)
Substitute Members
Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Anna Birley, Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Councillor Tim Briggs, Deputy
Mayor Marcia Cameron, Councillor Jane Edbrooke, Councillor Robert Hill, Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor
Luke Murphy, Councillor Louise Nathanson, Councillor Jane Pickard and Councillor Sonia Winifred

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Maria Burton, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone: 020 7926 8703; Email: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

Public access to the meeting will be allowed on a first come first serve basis with doors opening
from 18:45. Once the venue is full there will be no further admission.
Observers will be required to sign in before entry.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors (details via the website www.lambeth.gov.uk or phone 020 7926 2131) may be
contacted at their surgeries or through Party Group offices to represent your views to the Council: (Liberal
Democrats 020 7926 2028) (Conservatives 020 7926 2213) (Labour 020 7926 1166).
Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Bolney Meadow Community Centre, 31 Bolney Street, London, SW8 1EZ
Rail: Mainline to Vauxhall Tubes: Victoria Line to Vauxhall or Stockwell Northern Line to Oval or Stockwell
Bolney Meadow Community Centre is 10 minute walk from Vauxhall Station; 12 minutes from Stockwell or
Oval Station.
Bus 88 and 2 are less than 5 minutes from the Centre.
The Centre is situated half way down Bolney Street set within the estate and the building can be seen
from the road.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes

1-8

To agree minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 20th December 2016.

Town & Country Planning Act (1990), The Planning & Compensations Act
(1991), The Town & Country Planning (Control of Advertisement)
Regulations (1992), The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act (1990), The Town & Country Planning General Regulations
(1990), The Rush Common Act 1806 and related legislation: Applications
For information on documents used in the preparation of the reports
contact the Planning Advice Desk, Tel: 020 7926 1180.

3.

Carnegie Library, Herne Hill Road (Herne Hill) 16/06270/FUL &
16/06271/LB
Officer’s recommendations:
16/06270/FUL:
1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission subject to the
completion of an agreement under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 of the planning obligations listed in this
report.
2. Agree to delegate authority of the Director of Planning and
Development to:
i.
ii.

Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report;
and
Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set
out in this report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

3. In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning
permission and there is a subsequent appeal, delegated authority is
given to officers, having regard to the heads of terms set out in the
report, to negotiate and complete a document containing obligations
pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 in order to meet the requirement of the Planning Inspector

9 - 44

16/06271/LB:
Grant Conditional Listed Building Consent

4.

Planning Appeal and Enforcement Decisions September 2016
To note the Planning Appeal and Enforcement Decisions for September
2016.

45 - 56

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE (PAC) FAQs - YOUR QUESTIONS ANSWERED
1

Who sits on the PAC?
The Council has established a PAC, which consists of seven Councillors (elected members).

2

Where and when do PAC meetings take place?
Meetings are usually held at the Karibu Education Centre, 7 Gresham Rd, London SW9 7PH.
However, the Town Hall is closed, PAC will be held in a number of different venues across the
borough. Please therefore ensure that you check the front page of the agenda pack before every
meeting.
The meetings are normally held on a Tuesday evening at 7pm, one or two times a month and are
listed on the Council’s calendar of meetings at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCalendarMonthView.asp?GL=1&bcr=1

3

Can I attend PAC meetings?
Yes. All PAC meetings are open to the press and public although on rare occasions the Committee
may discuss a matter in private.

4

How can I get a copy of any reports to be considered by PAC?
The officer reports on applications to be considered are circulated to PAC Members and published
on the Council’s website a week before the meeting. Papers for meetings can be viewed at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=600
A limited number of hard copies are also available from Democratic Services at the meeting.

5

Can I make written representations to the PAC meeting?
Yes. Written representations, including any letters, petitions or photos should be:

Sent to the relevant case officer listed on the front page of the officer report preferably by
email.

Sent by 12 noon two clear working days before the meeting. Meetings are normally on a
Tuesday, so the deadline would be 12 noon by the Thursday before the meeting.

6

Can I speak at PAC meetings?
Yes. Up to three supporters (including applicants), three objectors and the Ward Members can
address the meeting at the Committee’s discretion for a maximum of two minutes each.
You must register your wish to speak on any application by telephoning Democratic Services on 020
7926 1065 or emailing democracy@lambeth.gov.uk by 12 noon on the last working day before
the meeting. You will be required to supply in writing an outline of the points you wish to
raise at the meeting. If you telephone, Democratic Services will record these points.
Where the number of requests to speak exceeds three, and/or it is clear the speakers wish to make
similar points, like-minded speakers will be asked to liaise with each other so that all the points can
be raised succinctly.

7

Does the PAC consider applications in the order listed on the agenda?
Not necessarily. The order of business is determined at the meeting taking into consideration:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Applications which are withdrawn or which officers recommend should be deferred.
Applications where there are no notified speakers present wishing to address the committee
and members have no questions to ask the applicant or officers.
Applications which have been deferred from a previous meeting or have been the subject of a
site visit.
Applications for developments which would be in receipt of public funding and which are
subject to deadlines affecting delivery and other applications subject to specific deadlines.
Applications regarded as a priority due to the large number of people present, or where
applicants, objectors or other members of the public have special requirements.

8

What is the process for considering an application at the meeting?
Officers will introduce each application with a brief presentation which will usually include drawings
and photographs of the application site. The Committee will then hear from and question all
interested parties. Any registered objectors will speak first with applicants having the right of reply.
The merits of the application are considered taking into account the views of the interested parties
and planning officers before the committee reaches a decision.

9

What time does the meeting come to an end?
The meeting will be conducted in a business-like fashion and the Committee will endeavour to deal
with reports as quickly as possible.
However if there is a lot of outstanding business at 9.00pm the Chair will advise the meeting if and
how the timetable for the meeting has to be revised, in order to deal with remaining business and
finish the meeting at 10.00pm. At 10.00pm, if the meeting has not ended, the meeting will decide
which business can be completed by 10.45pm and any business not reached by that time will be
deferred to the next meeting.

10

What are site visits?
Site visits are arranged by Planning Officers to allow members of the PAC to observe the site and
gain a better understanding of the impact of the proposal. The decision of whether to have a site
visit is made by the Chair of the committee in consultation with the Director of Planning and
Development.

11

When do site visits take place and can I attend?
Site visits will normally take place on the Saturday morning immediately prior to the committee which
will consider the application. An alternative date can be arranged with the agreement of the Chair.
Other than for reasons of access, the arrangements for site visits will not normally be publicised or
made known to applicants, agents or third parties except in exceptional circumstances. Objectors
are not invited to site visits except in exceptional circumstances.
For more information please see the ‘Protocol for Members of the Planning Applications Committee’
in the Council Constitution.

12

If I am unable to attend the PAC meeting, how can I find out the decision?
Decisions will be posted on Twitter from @lbldemocracy immediately as the decision is taken. You
can also contact Democratic Services by telephone or email. The minutes from the meeting will also
be available on the Council’s website approximately five clear working days after the meeting.
Planning officers will send the applicant and any interested parties who have made written
representations formal notification of the Committee decision.

13

Can I listen to PAC online?
Yes! You can now listen to the any meeting of the PAC live via the council’s website. Simply go to
the specific meeting webpage (via the main PAC webpage) and tune in from the start of the
meeting. You can also listen back to previous meetings via the same method.

14

What is the addendum?
Sometimes planning officers are required to make amendments or add further information to
planning reports after the main agenda pack has been published. These changes will be
documented in an addendum (published the Friday before the meeting), and if necessary a second
addendum (published the day of the meeting). All addenda can be reviewed online as soon as it is
published and hard copies are made available for members of the public at the meeting.

15

Where can I get further information or advice?
If you would like further information or advice, please contact:
(a) Town Planning Advice Desk: Tel: 020 7926 1180, Email: planning@lambeth.gov.uk
(b) Town Planning Webpage: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/Services/HousingPlanning/Planning/
(c) Democratic Services: Tel: 020 7926 1065, Email: democracy@lambeth.gov.uk

Guide to Use Classes Order in England (May 2013)
The table below is intended as a general guide. Reference needs to be made to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes)
Classes

Use/Description

A1
Shops

Shops, retail warehouses, hairdressers, undertakers,
travel and ticket agencies, post offices, pet shops,
sandwich bars, showrooms, domestic hire shops, dry
cleaners, funeral directors and internet cafes.

A2
Financial &
professional
services

Financial services such as banks and building societies,
professional services (other than health and medical
services) including estate and employment agencies and
betting offices.

A3
Restaurants &
cafés

For the sale of food and drink for consumption on the
premises - restaurants, snack bars and cafes.

A4
Drinking
establishments

Public houses, wine bars or other drinking
establishments (not night clubs).

A5
Hot food
takeaways

For the sale of hot food for consumption off the premises.

B1
Business

a) Office other than a use within Class A2.
b) Research and development of products or processes.
c) Light industry appropriate in a residential area.

B2
General industrial

Use for industrial process other than one falling within
class B1 (excluding incineration purposes, chemical
treatment or landfill or hazardous waste).

B8
Storage or

This class includes open air storage.

Permitted change
Mixed use as A1 and up
to 2 flats above.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A2, A3, B1.
To A1 where there is a
display window at ground
floor level and to mixeduse as A2 and up to 2
flats above.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A3, B1.
To A1 where there is a
display window at ground
floor level, and A2.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, B1.
To A1, A2 or A3.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.
To A1, A2 or A3.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.
To B8 subject to total
floorspace being no
greater than 500sqm.
B1(a) permitted change
to C3 subject to: prior
approval process;
previous use timings;
limitations and exempt
areas (until 30.05.16).
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
To B1 and B8. Permitted
change to B8 is subject
to total floorspace being
no greater than 500sqm.
To B1 subject to total
floorspace being no

distribution
C1
Hotels
C2
Residential
institutions
C2A
Secure residential
institutions

C3
Dwellinghouses

C4
Houses in
multiple
occupation
D1
Non-residential
institutions

Hotels, boarding and guest houses where no significant
element of care is provided (excludes hostels).
Residential care homes, hospitals, nursing homes,
boarding schools, residential colleges and training
centres.
Prisons, young offenders’ institutions, detention centres,
secure training centres, custody centres, short term
holding centres, secure hospitals, secure local authority
accommodation or use as a military barracks.
Use as a dwellinghouse: a) A single person or by people
to be regarded as forming a single household; b) Not
more than six residents living together as a single
household where care is provided for residents; c) Not
more than six residents living together as a single
household where no care is provided to residents (other
than use within Class C4).
Small shared houses occupied by 3-6 unrelated
individuals, as their only or main residence, who share
basic amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom. NB Large
HMOs (more than 6 people) are unclassified and
therefore sui generis.
Clinics, health centres, crèches, day nurseries, day
centres, schools, art galleries (other than for sale or hire),
museums, libraries, halls, places of worship, church
halls, law court. Non residential education and training
centres.

greater than 500sqm.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.

To C4.

To C3.

Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.

D2
Assembly and
leisure

Cinemas, music and concert halls, bingo and dance halls
(but not night clubs), swimming baths, skating rinks,
gymnasiums or area for indoor or outdoor sports and
recreations (except for motor sports, or where firearms
are used).

To state-funded school,
subject to prior approval.
Temporary permitted
change (2 years) for up
to 150sqm to A1, A2, A3,
B1.

Sui Generis
Uses that do not
fall
within a specified
class

Includes theatres, large houses in multiple occupation,
hostels providing no significant element of care, scrap
yards, petrol filling stations and shops selling and/or
displaying motor vehicles, retail warehouse clubs,
nightclubs, launderettes, taxi businesses, amusement
centres and casinos.

No permitted change
except casino to D2.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 20 December 2016 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Bernard Gentry, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Ben
Kind (Substitute), Councillor Diana Morris (Deputy Chair), Councillor
Mohammed Seedat, Councillor Joanne Simpson and Councillor Clair
Wilcox (Chair)

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Amélie Treppass

1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
Councillor Ben Kind stated that application 16/03367/FUL (164 – 168
Westminster Bridge Road) was located in his ward but that he had no
interest to declare.
With regard to application 16/04838/FUL (28 Deerhurst Road),
Councillor Clair Wilcox declared that she would absent herself from
the meeting and move to another room for the duration of the item as
she lived on Deerhurst Road and knew the parties involved.
Councillor Mohammed Seedat stated that application 16/04838/FUL
(28 Deerhurst Road) was located in his ward but that he had no
interest to declare.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 29
November 2016 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record
of the proceedings.
The Chair announced a provisional timetable for the meeting in
accordance with Standing Order 9.9.1.

3.

JOHN VETCH HOUSE, 6 ELMS ROAD (CLAPHAM COMMON)
16/05628/FUL
Case No 16/05628/FUL (agenda item three, page 13 of the agenda pack
and page one of the addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary
of the report and subsequent addendum that had been published on
the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key material
planning issues for consideration, which included the impact of the

Page 2
existing building on the conservation area, the quality of the housing
provided in the proposal and the impact on the streetscene. Members
were advised that this application had been deferred from the
previous meeting due to a lack of time.
Following the officer’s presentation, the applicant’s representative
raised the following points:
 The current building was a negative contributor to the conservation
area. The proposed building would be sympathetic to surrounding
Georgian buildings and would enhance the streetscape.
 Following the refusal of a prior application, the applicant and
officers had worked to address the issues raised.
 The proposal was compliant with policy.
 Over 70% of the original garden would remain.
In response to questions from Members, officers explained that:
 There were currently 11 trees on the site. Four trees in poor
condition would be removed; three from the front garden and one
from the back garden. There was a recommendation to remove
these trees regardless of the outcome of this application. The
removed trees would be replaced and all of the remaining trees
would be safeguarded.
 The unorthodox ground plan had arisen out of an effort to make as
many units as possible dual aspect. Only the studio unit would be
single aspect. The floor plan would not harm the design or
surrounding area, and the units was in keeping with Georgian
developments.
 The residential amenity of future residents would not be harmed.
The units would be high quality, with high ceilings and large
windows.
 There would be robust boundary treatment to ensure the security of
the development. Further details and specifications of the cycle
storage would be provided for by condition, to ensure security and
functionality.
 BNP Paribas had advised the Council on the viability of affordable
housing on site, stating that providing that more than one affordable
unit would not be viable.
 As the studio flat shared the core with other units, it was unlikely
that it would be attractive to registered providers (RPs).
 A marketing exercise to explore interest by RPs in providing
affordable housing on site would be carried out.
 A Council Housing Officer had considered the application and had
recommended the six month marketing exercise. If the exercise
showed that there was no interest in providing affordable housing
onsite an additional in lieu contribution of £420,000 towards
affordable housing would be required.
 The s106 payments were fixed.
 An additional condition requiring the approval of a waste
management strategy was included in the addendum.
The committee considered points raised by the applicant’s representative
and information provided by officers in conjunction with the report before
making the following observations:
 The lack of comments from local residents demonstrated the quality
of the proposal.
 It was unfortunate that RPs could not be compelled to provide

Page 3



affordable housing.
The proposal would remove a building that was detrimental to the
conservation area and would replace it with a building that would
enhance the area and provide better quality accommodation.

It was MOVED by Councillor Gentry, SECONDED by Councillor Haselden
and
RESOLVED, unanimously,
To GRANT planning permission subject to conditions and completion of a
S106 agreement as set out in the report and published addendum and
subject to the following delegation
to the Director of Planning and Development to:
i. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report
including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or
deletions as the Director of Planning and Development
considers reasonably necessary;
ii. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations pursuant to
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the
obligations detailed in the heads of terms as the Director of
Planning and Development considers reasonably necessary;
and
iii. Complete the planning obligations referred to above.

4.

28 DEERHURST ROAD (STREATHAM WELLS) 16/04838/FUL
[Councillor Wilcox vacated the Committee and absented herself from
the meeting room for the duration of this item. Councillor Morris acted
as Chair for the duration of this item.]
Case no 16/04838/FUL (agenda item four, page 65 of the agenda and
page nine of the addendum)
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary
of the report and subsequent addendum that had been published on
the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key material
planning issues for consideration and that officers recommended
approval on a one year temporary basis and subject to conditions.
Condition 9 had been amended in the addendum published on the day
of the meeting.
Following the officer’s presentation, objectors raised the following
points:
 Residents had experienced difficulties around photo shoots for
a number of years. These issues had been largely due to a
lack of management.
 It was not possible for crews to self-regulate activity and there
needed to be an independent manager.
 Vehicles, including goods vehicles, would wait outside for up to
an hour. Vehicles were sometimes parked on corners and
equipment would be left on the pavement, causing
unacceptable impact to residents.

Page 4



Although there were spaces for two vehicles on the driveway,
residents had never seen them being used by photographic
crews.
Residents had been prevented from entering or exiting the
road by photographic crews, cars had been scratched at the
time of photographic shoots and there had been erotic film
shoots by windows.

The applicant then provided the following information:
 The previous owner had used the house as a film and
photographic shoot location. The applicant was aware of the
problems that occurred with the use of the house as a film
location and as such had applied for the use of the application
site as a mixed use residential (C3) and photographic shoot
location (B1) only.
 Future photographic shoots would be on a smaller scale, with
no generators, cranes or lights on the street. There would be
limited light, noise and traffic pollution associated with the
photographic shoots.
 The applicant had worked closely with officers to develop
appropriate conditions.
Councillor Amélie Treppass, speaking on behalf of residents opposed
to the application, stated the following:
 There had been unlawful business use for a number of years
and residents had complained about the business activities.
 Policy H3 required that existing housing be safeguarded.
 Residents had no faith that conditions would be upheld.
 The Council had limited ability to control parking by crews as
there was no CPZ.
 One resident had recently moved out of the area as he could
not deal with the stress associated with the property.
In response to questions from Members, officers stated that:
 The table in paragraph 6.2.3 of the report had been provided
by the applicant and was not independently verified. Transport
officers considered that the figures provided were reasonable.
 Parking stress levels had been shown to be low, although
officers did not have to hand the date of the parking stress
survey. There was ample space to accommodate crew parking
on Hill House Road but these spaces would not be reserved for
photographic crews.
 The planning statement estimated the average stay of LGVs to
be 10 minutes to drop off and pick up people and equipment.
There was space for two vehicles to park on the front driveway.
 Condition 9 set out when deliveries would be made. Crew
could not park on Deerhurst Road and vehicles larger than
supermarket home delivery vans could not deliver on Deerhurst
Road.
 The delivery and servicing plan would be reviewed after three
months.
 A photographic event would be defined as an event where the
applicant had a fee-paying client with a pre-arranged
appointment. Ad hoc photography would not be included.
 While there was no requirement to provide evidence, such as
invoices, to demonstrate compliance, it could be requested if

Page 5








there were issues.
Restricting all external lighting through a condition would be
too prescriptive. Restricting operation between 08.00 and
20.00 was sufficient.
There would be no loss of residential space as the floor plan
would not change and the applicant would continue to live at
the property. The B1 use would be restricted to 52 days per
year so there would be full residential use for the majority of
the time.
The applicant would be responsible for the three month review
of the delivery and servicing plan.
If the property were to be sold, the terms of any permission
and conditions would remain with the property.
The applicant had informed the meeting that most photographic
shoots operated between 09.00 and 18.00. The conditions
would ensure that any commercial activity, including the setting
up and taking down of equipment, would only take place
between 08.00 and 20.00. Members were advised by the
Legal Officer that if they considered it appropriate the wording
of the relevant condition could be amended to specify that the
operating hours included time to set up and dismantle
equipment.

The committee considered points raised and information provided by
officers, objectors and the applicant in conjunction with the report
before making the following observations:
 It was not clear how the business activity could be monitored
or how the conditions could be enforced.
 There was not sufficient recent evidence of the levels of
parking stress.
 Approving the application would result in the temporary loss of
residential housing, thereby breaching policy H3.
 The proposal was a hybridisation of residential and business
use and it would be difficult to discern when the property was
in business or residential use.
 Proposing a temporary permission of one year was a positive
suggestion.
 It was difficult to enforce parking rules even in areas with
CPZs. Without a CPZ the conditions relating to parking could
not be enforced.
 The three month review being carried out by the applicant was
not ideal.
It was MOVED by Councillor Morris, SECONDED by Councillor
Haselden and
RESOLVED, unanimously,
To refuse officers’ recommendations and REFUSE planning
permission for reasons relating to the following matters:
i. The potential loss of residential use (contrary to policy H3) arising
out of the hybrid nature of the proposed use.
ii. The potential impact on residential amenity (contrary to policy Q2)
due to the increased traffic, lighting and numbers of people
associated with the proposed business use.
iii. The potential difficulties in enforcing conditions that were intended

Page 6
to mitigate concerns.
To delegate to the Director of Planning and Development in consultation
with the Vice Chair the precise formulation of the reasons for refusal.

5.

164 - 168 WESTMINSTER BRIDGE ROAD (BISHOP'S) 16/03367/FUL
Case no 16/03367/FUL (agenda item five, page 83 of the agenda and
page ten of the addendum)
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary
of the report and subsequent addendum that had been published on
the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key material
planning issues for consideration which included the provision of
additional office and retail space, the impact of the existing building
on the conservation area and the impact on the adjacent locally listed
building.
Following the officer’s presentation, the applicant’s representative
stated that:
 The existing building was a negative contributor to the conservation
area.


There would be an additional 53m2 of flexible office floor space
provided and A1/A2/A3 usage on the ground and basement floors.



Secure bike parking, off-street bin storage and renewable energy
provision would be provided through the scheme.

In response to questions from Members, officers provided the following
information:
 While there was no direct link between the application and the
Westminster Bridge Road renewal project, it was normal practice
for construction management plans to require reinstatement to any
damage to the highway, including pavements and street furniture.


The details of the construction methodology had not yet been
discussed and would be finalised as part of the construction
management plan.



Requiring applicants to consult with the community had led to
issues in other cases, largely due to a difference in expectations
from different groups.



Condition 5(b) required the applicant to provide advance notification
of road closures.



The condition included in the addendum required the developer to
join the Waterloo Maintenance Group which would cover traffic
works.



The design and layout of cycle storage could be reviewed via
condition to ensure that it was satisfactory.



The applicant did not own the space at the rear of the building so
could not use it for disabled parking.

Page 7


Condition 13 could be amended to include ‘reveals’ and condition 6
could be amended to include the return of refuse containers after
collection.

The committee considered points raised and information provided by
officers and the applicant’s representative in conjunction with the
report before making the following observations:
 The proposal was a vast improvement from the current building in
terms of use, amenity and the active frontage.
It was MOVED by Councillor Simpson, SECONDED by Councillor
Haselden and
RESOLVED, unanimously
To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions and completion of
a S106 agreement as outlined in the officer’s report and published
addendum and subject to the following:
i. Condition 7 to be amended to read ‘Notwithstanding the basement
layout in the submitted drawings the cycle parking shall be
redesigned in order to secure a more convenient arrangement
for the manoeuvring and storage of cycles. The revised design
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council and
implemented prior to occupation.’

ii. ‘Reveals’ to be added to condition 13(c).
iii. Condition 5 to be amended to read ‘shall not commence’.
Condition 6 to be amended to include ‘and including measures to ensure
that refuse containers are returned to bin store after collection’.
CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting ended at 9.30 pm
CHAIR
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 17 January 2017
Date of Despatch: Friday 30 December 2016
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

Page 10

Carnegie Library, Herne Hill Road, London, SE24 0AG
Application Number: 16/06270/FUL
Case Officer: Lauren Shallcross
Ward: Herne Hill
Date Received: 07.11.2016
Proposal: Retention of the existing library together with the erection of two single storey
extensions to the south west elevation. Change of use and part excavation of the basement
from a library (Use Class D1) to a gym and studio (Use Class D2) and the construction of
an external plant compound provided at basement level.
Drawing numbers: GLL_015-100, GLL_015-101 A, GLL_015-102 A, GLL_015-108 A,
GLL_015-109 A, GLL_015-111 A, GLL_015-103 A, GLL_015-105 B, GLL_015-113,
GLL_015-107 B, GLL_015-104 A, GLL_015-106 C, GLL_015-112, GLL_015-110 B,
GLL_015-114, Tree Constraints Plan, Tree Protection Plan
Documents: Design and Access Statement 26th October 2016 Rev A by Icon Building
Consultancy Limited, Transport Statement October 2016 by TTP Consulting, Transport
Note January 2017 (170124) by TTP Consulting, Transport Note January 2017 (170117) by
TTP Consulting, Sustainability Statement 27th October Rev A by Icon Building Consultancy
Limited, Construction Method Statement 27th October 2016 by Icon Building Consultancy
Limited, Heritage and Planning Statement 27th October Rev A by Icon Building Consultancy
Limited, Noise and Vibration Assessment Report October 2016 by Philip Acoustics Ltd,
Visual Impact Assessment, GLL_015_C_190117a.
RECOMMENDATION:
1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission subject to the completion of an
agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 of the
planning obligations listed in this report.
2. Agree to delegate authority of the Director of Planning and Development to:
-

Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report; and
Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in this report
pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3. In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission and there
is a subsequent appeal, delegated authority is given to officers, having regard to the
heads of terms set out in the report, to negotiate and complete a document containing
obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in
order to meet the requirement of the Planning Inspector.
Associated Application: Listed Building Consent
Application Number: 16/06271/LB
Proposal: Retention of the existing library together with the erection of two single storey
extensions to the south west elevation. Change of use and part excavation of the basement
from a library (Use Class D1) to a gym and studio (Use Class D2) and the construction of
an external plant compound provided at basement level.
Listed Building Works: Existing columns supporting the ground floor will be underpinned
and sections of the masonry walls removed and certain openings enlarged. Existing
basement cloakroom fittings including sanitary ware, finishes and partitions will be stripped
out to permit reconfiguration and expansion of these facilities with alterations at ground floor
level comprising forming a new door to the existing stairwell, removal of existing and
provision of new partitions.
Drawing numbers: GLL_015-100, GLL_015-101 A, GLL_015-102 A, GLL_015-108 A,
GLL_015-109 A, GLL_015-111 A, GLL_015-103 A, GLL_015-105 B, GLL_015-113,
GLL_015-107 B, GLL_015-104 A, GLL_015-106 C, GLL_015-112, GLL_015-110 B,
GLL_015-114

Page 11

Documents: Design and Access Statement 26th October 2016 Rev A by Icon Building
Consultancy Limited, Heritage and Planning Statement 27th October Rev A by Icon Building
Consultancy Limited, Visual Impact Assessment.
RECOMMENDATION: Grant Conditional Listed Building Consent
Applicant: GLL
Agent: Icon Building Consultancy Limited
SITE DESIGNATIONS
Relevant site designations:
Listed Building
Conservation Area

Listed Building Grade II
N/a

LAND USE DETAILS
Site area

2.219 sq.m

Existing
Proposed

Use Class

Use Description

D1
D1
D2

Library
Library
Gym

Floorspace
(Gross External Area)
1,860
1,205.5
744.3

PARKING DETAILS

Existing
Proposed

Car Parking
Spaces
(general)
3
1

Car Parking
Spaces
(Disabled)
0
1

Bicycle
Spaces

Motorbike Spaces

0
12

0
0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The report relates to an application for the retention of the existing library together with the
erection of two single storey extensions to the south west elevation. Change of use and part
excavation of the basement from a library (Use Class D1) to a gym and studio (Use Class D2)
and the construction of an external plant compounds provided at basement level with
associated internal alterations. Pursuant to Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004, the application has been assessed in accordance with the development
plan and material considerations that include the response to the public notification and
consultation of the application. The key aspects of the assessment are summarised below.
Development Principle
The conversion of existing library floorspace (Class D1) to a gym use (Class D2) is supported
in planning policy terms. Officers consider that the provision of additional social infrastructure
through the creation of additional useable floorspace is appropriate for this site.
Design and Conservation
The scheme has regard to its context including the statutory Grade II listed building. It is
considered that the works would not cause harm to the character and special interest of the
Grade II listed building and as such the proposals are satisfactory.
Neighbour Amenity

Page 12

The proposal will not result in any significant loss of outlook and openness or daylight and
sunlight nor pose any privacy or overlooking impacts. With regard to noise, appropriately
worded conditions have been attached to ensure that noise and disturbance is minimised to
neighbouring properties. Any impact during construction including traffic, noise and dust will
be mitigated through the requirement for a construction management plan.
Transport/Highways
The application has been assessed by the Council’s Transport and Highways team who
confirm that the scheme can be accommodated within the capacity of the public transport and
highway network. A planning obligation is sought to secure contribution of £10,000 for an
additional disabled parking bay for the library due to the displacement of 3 parking spaces and
this will be secured as part of the s106 agreement. Various conditions of approval are
recommended if the council is minded to approve the application to control the construction,
operation and management of the development including construction management plan and
design of cycle and refuse storage.
Refuse/Recycling
The location of the refuse storage and collection is considered acceptable. Concerns are
raised over the adequate size and design of the refuse/recycling storage and further details
will be secured by an appropriately worded condition.
Landscaping
A landscaping scheme including tree retention and replacement planting is proposed. No
protected trees are being removed and no protected species or habitats will be lost or
impacted upon as part of the development.
Sustainability
The majority of the building is existing with relatively small new extensions and there is a high
level of interest in maintaining the character of the listed building internally and externally and
as such it would not be viable to meet the BREEAM ‘Excellent’ standard. The building’s listing
has a limiting effect on the types of improvements that can be undertaken to the building,
particularly restricting the inclusion of any sources of renewable energy. It is considered that
the appropriate sustainability measures can be dealt with via condition and under building
regulations.
Designing Out Crime
No information has been provided regarding community safety/designing out crime.
However, this will be dealt with under building regulations approved document Q.
Flood Risk, Land Stability and Ground Conditions
The site is located within Flood Zone 1 (not a designated Flood Risk Zone) and it is considered
to be at low risk of flooding. As the site is not within a designated FRZ and noting the limited
extent of the excavation works proposed, it is not considered reasonable or necessary to
require the submission of a flood risk assessment.
The existing building is detached and officers do not consider that the proposed excavation
works would cause undue harm to local ground conditions, land stability or the structural
stability of adjoining properties.
Officers are mindful that Policy Q20 requires that developments affecting listed building should
not diminish its ability to remain viable in use in the long term. As such, it is considered
appropriate to seek the submission of a basement construction method statement before
works commence to the listed building.

Page 13

Planning Obligations
A planning obligation for an additional disabled parking bay will be secured as part of the S106
planning agreement, if the council is minded to approve the application.
Overall, the scheme is considered appropriate and acceptable, and is recommended for
approval subject to the recommendations made on the cover sheet to this report.
OFFICERS REPORT

Reason for referral to PAC: The applications are reported to the Planning
Applications Committee in accordance with 3 of the Committee’s terms of
reference as they relate to applications which the Delivery Director –
Business, Growth & Regeneration or Assistant Director of Planning and
Development wishes to refer to the committee.

Page 14

1

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

1.1

The application site accommodates the Carnegie Library which is a Grade II listed
building, and a section of the building to the rear which is used as residential
accommodation. The building comprises of four storeys including the basement, ground
and part first and second floors.

1.2

There are four existing residential flats on the first and second floors, but these do not
form part of the application submission. The building is located on the western side of
Herne Hill Road between the junctions with Ferndene Road and Haredale Road.

1.3

The main entrance to the building is from Herne Hill Road and there are side entrances
from Ferndene Road and Haredale Road. The surrounding area is predominantly
residential with the pattern of development being terrace and semi-detached housing
bounding the site in all directions.

1.4

The property is not situated within a Conservation Area.

1.5

The ground floor and basement of the property was last use as Carnegie Library (Class
D1) and is owned by the Council.

1.6

The library is currently vacant having closed in March 2016.

1.7

There are currently three on-site parking spaces accessed via Ferndene Road and there
are three garages within the red line boundary accessed via Haredale Road.

1.8

The statutory list description states:
1905 by Wakeford and Son. Picturesque building combining classical framework with
Tudor-like large mullioned and transomed windows. Red brick with terra-cotta dressings
and lakeland slate roofs. One storey front range of 7 wide bays with 2 bell-cupolas on
roof ridge. Centre and end bays project under gables. The front is framed in an Ionic
Order with pilasters to windows and freestanding columns at angles of end bays. Open
pediments over windows contain draped cartouches. Round-arched central entrance in
rusticated terra-cotta panel has Ionic columns supporting open pediment with draped
cartouche bearing escutcheous. Balcony above with side balustrades. Two-bay returns
to 3-storey side wings of 5 and 4 bays with large windows and entablatures to floors,
heavy modillion eaves cornice.

2

PROPOSAL

2.1

The proposed scheme seeks the change of use of a proportion of the ancillary D1
space (approximately 258msq.m and excavation works at basement level to create an
additional 398sq.m of useable floorspace. The resulting 656sq.m of floorspace would
be used as a gym (Class D2 use). The gym would be operated by GLL Limited and
operate separately, both physically and functionally, from the library/community
floorspace (Class D1 use) floorspace to be retained at ground floor level.

2.2

The majority of the basement level currently has restricted head height and is
unusable. The useable basement level floorspace consists of a plant room, space for
mobile library storage and toilets covering 258sq.m. The toilets are proposed to be
extended at basement level for gym users/staff along with the addition of new toilets
at ground floor level for the retained library/community use. The mobile library storage
has been relocated offsite to Minet Library.

Page 15

2.3

The existing plant area will be reconfigured with the addition of a unisex toilet. In
addition an external area to the rear accessed from Haredale Road previously used
for staff car parking (3 vehicles) will be replaced by the entrance and reception area
for the proposed gym. This will be accommodated within a new single storey structure.

2.4

Existing basement cloakroom fittings including sanitary ware, finishes and partitions
will be stripped out to permit reconfiguration and expansion of these facilities with
alterations at ground floor level comprising forming a new door to the existing stairwell,
removal of existing and provision of new partitions. These works are subject to the
listed building application.

2.5

There is an element of self-contained residential accommodation, in the form of 4
residential units located in a section of the building to the rear at first and second floor
levels but which is unaffected by this proposal. The residential units have separate
access arrangements.

3

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

04/00243/FUL – Application permitted - The provision of new parking area to the rear,
alterations to boundary treatment including partial demolition of wall and new railings
and gate along with associated alterations granted on 18.11.2004.

3.2

04/00245/LB – Application permitted - Internal alterations to the dispatch and
photocopying room together with the provision of new parking area to the rear,
alterations to boundary treatment including partial demolition of wall and new railings
and gate along with associated alterations granted on 01.03.2005.

3.3

10/00953/ADV – Application permitted - Restoration of hanging sign which will be
illuminated above main entrance and an additional notice-board on forecourt to left of
main entrance granted on 05.07.2010.

3.4

10/00954/LB – Application permitted - Restoration of existing illuminated hanging sign
above main entrance and an additional notice-board on forecourt to left of main
entrance. [Advertisement and Listed Building Consent] granted on 05.07.2010.

3.5

13/04286/RG3 -Application permitted - Temporary use of one room at first floor level for
Class B1 (office) purposes for a period of two years granted on 19.11.2013.

3.6

13/05663/VOC – Application permitted - Variation of condition 3 (Operating Times) of
planning permission 13/04286/RG3 (Temporary use of one room at first floor level for
Class B1 (office) purposes for a period of two years) granted on 06.01.2014.
The variation would seek to allow the following minor material amendments to the
approved scheme:
To allow Sunday operating between the hours of 09.00-17.00 and these same hours on
Bank and National Holidays.

Page 16

3.7

14/05363/RG3 – Application permitted - Temporary change of use of a ground floor
and first floor room to B1 use, until 31 December 2016 granted on 24.11.2014.

4

CONSULATIONS

4.1

Statutory Consultees

4.1.1

Conservation and Design: No objections subject to the imposition of conditions.

4.1.2

Transport: No objections subject to the imposition of conditions and planning obligation
for an additional disabled parking bay.

4.1.3

Arboricultural Officer: No objection subject to the imposition of conditions.

4.1.4

Policy: No in principle objection.

4.1.5

Environmental Health: No objection subject to the imposition of conditions.

4.2

Other Consultees

4.2.1

Herne Hill Society: Objection on the grounds that the proposal does not comply with
policy requirements. All objections have been included in the table below.

4.2.2

Camberwell Society: No representation received.

4.2.3

Ruskin On The Hill: No representation received.

4.3

Adjoining owners/occupiers

4.3.1

A site notice was displayed from 21.11.2016 to 12.12.2016 and the application was
advertised in a local publication on 16.11.2016. The formal consultation period ended
on 12.12.2016 although officers have continued to accept representations received
after that date and these are included in the table below. At the time of writing a total
of 318 letters of representation have been submitted.

4.3.2

313 letters of objections have been received. A summary of the concerns raised is set
out below:
Summary of objections
Land Use
A full working library will not be provided – the proposed
plans shows the uses as a flexible community space and
flexible library option.
No need or demand for a gym in the locality
Loss of a library - building should remain in use as a staffed
library which the locality needs.
Reduction of library facilities without adequate
demonstration of lack of demand for former library.
Library space, as it has existed to date, is not being "reprovided on site", neither is any replacement facility being
provided "in the locality".
Fails to provide an improved library service provision.
Furthermore, it has not been demonstrated that provision of

Response
These matters are
addressed in section
6.1 of the report

Page 17

a gym (for which no business plan has been made public)
and the transfer of the remainder of the property to a yet to
be determined group will deliver any approved strategies for
service improvements.
The change of use effectively pushes out any chance of
there being an effective library space in the building. These
are totally at odds with Lambeth’s objectives to be a cooperative council.
It is unacceptable to suggest that the main, ground floor
central space will be 'flexible community space'. Plans show
the library per se will be squeezed into one or two small
rooms of the building, which cannot possibly serve the
needs of the community.
The proposed café/kitchen areas are small and illpositioned.
There is a lack of toilet provision for the ground floor
library/community areas.
The future of the library space is not sufficiently safe
guarded. The community has consistently highlighted the
importance of protecting the library service as part of any
future plans.
Lambeth Council has not provided any credible evidence
that it has properly considered or researched ways of
maintaining or enhancing the building's original intended
use or of changing its use to something more in keeping with
its status as a community asset and which would be more
likely to be supported by the library's former users and by
residents in the area.
No clear plans have yet been presented as to what space,
if any, will be available for library and community use and
how or if it will be staffed.
Amenity
These matters are
addressed in section
6.3 of the report
The proposed opening times are inappropriate to the wholly
residential area.
Generation of noise and vibration from the gym to the use
of the other rooms/floors in the building.
Lighting from the new build reception and car park area.
Noise and air pollution from the boilers and air conditioning
units which will be built in the garden area.
Noise of comings and goings associated with up to 300
visits/day
The long hours proposed for allowing 'noisy work' are
unacceptable, and are likely to severely affect neighbours'
quality of life for the months it will take to complete the
structural work.
Information on limits of timings of the noisiest building work
but no information at all quantifying noise limits.
The sound proofing of the building is inadequate and music
played within the proposed gym and community space will
clearly mean that the relative quiet of a library study space
will be not be achievable.

Page 18

The air conditioning units will be directly below two bedroom
windows, creating noise and disturbance to the residents,
neighbours, and those who use the garden.
Transport
Increased pressure on the limited amount of parking spaces These matters are
addressed in section
6.4 of the report
Excavation work of the basement will be extremely noisy
and cause traffic and parking disruption in Ferndene Road.
Increased traffic
No provision of car parking for gym users
The inconvenience of the public transport will encourage
people to drive to the building, increasing traffic and parking
problems in the immediate locality.
The waste disposal is proposed to be 'as existing' but with
trip generation increased by a predicted 310 extra users for
the gym, waste will disposal will increase causing extra
noise in the neighbourhood on collection day.
Design/Heritage
These matters are
addressed in section
6.2 of the report
Unsympathetic Extension on a Grade II Listed Building
The proposed excavation is not deep enough to
accommodate gym users. 3m floor to ceiling height is a substandard offer according to Sport England Fitness and
Exercise Spaces Design Guidance Notes.
Internal works not justified and would harm the listed
building
Harm the "significance/special interest" of the listed building,
which is strongly linked to Andrew Carnegie, was purposebuilt as a library on condition that it be used for nothing else,
and has functioned extremely well in its original usage.
Additional information required on the design quality of the
extensions.
The work needed to be done to convert the library into a gym
will destroy the fabric of the building.
Landscaping
Loss of garden/amenity space to facilitate development. These matters are
Policy requires 70% of gardens to be retained.
addressed in section
6.6 of the report
Destroying mature trees
Sustainability
The area undergoing conversion and extension is over This matter is dealt
500m2 and therefore a BREEAM assessment is required in with in section 6.7 of
accordance with Lambeth Policy EN4 (Sustainable design the report
and construction).
Other
Applications only given minimal publicity
A full and thorough
consultation process
was conducted in
accordance
with
statutory
requirements.

Page 19

Website down over Christmas so could not leave This is unfortunate
comments.
but comments on
this case have been
accepted
beyond
the end of the
consultation period
and the scheme has
been present on the
website for in excess
of the 21 days
required.
Detailed information and greater opportunities to engage The strength of
with the council about this matter should have been public engagement
provided but local residents feel that there has been an prior to submission
overall lack of information about the proposed plans. The is not relevant to the
consultation with the community and the residents of the planning
building has been consistently poor to non-existent.
considerations
Properly qualified and paid Librarians should be running the Not
a
material
library, paid for by the council and not undemocratic planning
voluntary trusts where there is no long term guarantee of consideration
service.
Ethnic inequalities are at their worst in Lambeth
This matter is dealt
with in section 8 of
the report
Not material planning considerations
No business plan shown by GLL for the need of a gym. This is not a material
There is no evidence that the planned gym will be planning
commercially viable.
consideration. The
viability
of
the
potential
operator
does not impact on
the planning merits
of the case.

4.3.3

5 letters of support were received. A summary of the points raised are set out below:
Summary of support
Response
Land Use
See section 6.1
The gym in the basement is supported as long as the main part
of the building ids available for community use.
This is the solution to get investment into the building and for it
to be properly used again.
The building will continue to serve the function to which is was
originally intended – a Library. Space within the building will
continue to be used for community purposes. Only a part of the
building currently unused will be used to accommodate the
gym.

Page 20

5

POLICIES

5.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning
decisions to be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

5.2

The development plan in Lambeth is the London Plan (2016) and the Lambeth Local
Plan adopted on 23rd September 2015.

5.3

The National Planning Policy Framework was published in 2012. This document sets
out the Government’s planning policies for England including the presumption in favour
of sustainable development and is a material consideration in the determination of all
applications.

5.4

The current planning application has been considered against all relevant national,
regional and local planning policies as well as any relevant guidance. Set out below are
those policies most relevant to the application, however, consideration is made against
the development plan as a whole.

5.5

The London Plan (2016)
Policy 3.1: Ensuring equal life chances for all
Policy 3.16: Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure
Policy 3.18: Sports facilities
Policy 4.6: Support for and enhancement of arts, culture, sport and entertainment
Policy 5.2: Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Policy 5.3: Sustainable design and construction
Policy 5.4: Retrofitting
Policy 5.11: Green roofs and development site environs
Policy 5.12: Flood risk management
Policy 5.13: Sustainable Drainage
Policy 6.3 Assessing effects on development on transport capacity
Policy 6.9: Cycling
Policy 6.10: Walking
Policy 6.13: Parking
Policy 7.1: London’s living spaces and places
Policy 7.2: An inclusive environment
Policy 7.3: Designing out crime
Policy 7.6: Architecture
Policy 7.8: Heritage assets and archaeology
Policy 7.13: Safety, security and resilience to emergency
Policy 7.15: Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes
Policy 7.19: Biodiversity and access to nature
Policy 7.21: Trees and woodlands
Policy 8.2: Planning Obligations

5.6

Lambeth Local Plan (September 2015)
D1: Delivery and monitoring
D2: Presumption in favour of sustainable development
D3: Infrastructure
D4: Planning Obligations
ED11: Visitor attractions, leisure, arts and cultural uses
S1: Safeguarding existing community premises
S2: New or improved community premises
T1: Sustainable Travel
T2: Walking

Page 21

T3: Cycling
T4: Public Transport Infrastructure
T6: Assessing impacts of development on transport capacity
T7: Parking
T8: Servicing
EN1: Open Space and biodiversity
EN4: Sustainable design and construction
EN5: Flood risk
EN6: Sustainable drainage systems and water management
Q1: Inclusive Environments
Q2: Amenity
Q3: Community safety
Q5: Local distinctiveness
Q7: Urban design: new development
Q8: Design quality: construction detailing
Q9: Landscaping
Q10: Trees
Q11: Building alterations and extensions
Q12: Refuse/recycling storage
Q13: Cycle storage
Q15: Boundary treatments
Q20: Statutory listed buildings
Q22: Conservation Areas
PN9: Herne Hill
5.7

Supplementary Planning Documents
Building Alterations and Extensions (2015)
S106 Planning Obligations SPD

5.8

Additional Guidance
Refuse and Recycling Storage Design Guide (2013)

Page 22

6

ASSESSMENT

6.1

Land Use

6.1.1

In terms of lawful planning use the site in question predominately falls within a Class
D1 use (Non-residential institution), and was previously in use as a public library
comprising 1,860sq.m of floorspace This figure is inclusive of ancillary floorspace at
basement level used for storage purposes and the provision of toilet facilities. This use
ceased in March 2016.

6.1.2

There is an element of self-contained residential accommodation, in the form of 4
residential units located in a section of the building to the rear at first and second floor
levels but which is unaffected by this proposal. The residential units have separate
access arrangements.

6.1.3

The proposed scheme seeks the change of use of a proportion of the ancillary D1
space (approximately 258msq.m) and excavation works at basement level to create
an additional 398sq.m of useable floorspace. The resulting 656sq.m of floorspace
would be used as a gym (Class D2 use). The gym would be operated by GLL Limited
and operate separately, both physically and functionally, from the library/community
floorspace (Class D1 use) floorspace to be retained at ground floor level.

6.1.4

The majority of the basement level currently has restricted head height and is
unusable. The useable basement level floorspace consists of a plant room, space for
mobile library storage and toilets covering 258sq.m. The toilets are proposed to be
extended at basement level for gym users/staff along with the addition of new toilets
at ground floor level for the retained library/community use. The mobile library storage
has been relocated offsite to Minet Library.

6.1.5

The existing plant area will be reconfigured with the addition of a unisex toilet. In
addition an external area to the rear accessed from Haredale Road previously used
for staff car parking (3 vehicles) will be replaced by the entrance and reception area
for the proposed gym. This will be accommodated within a new single storey structure.

6.1.6

Additional space in the form of plant room and plant compound will be constructed to
the rear of the building, covering a total of approx. 44 sq.m.

6.1.7

In terms of land use considerations, the key issue is the part loss of community
floorspace and the acceptability of the introduction of a gym (Class D2 use) on the site.
This would be facilitated by a change of use of existing Class D1 floorspace and the
creation of additional floorspace as part of the proposed excavation and extension
works.

6.1.8

Importantly, the proposed reconfiguration of the ground floor level library space for
community use purposes, including a proposed community cafe, would not require
planning consent as it would fall within the lawful Class D1 use. Physical changes to
the building fabric require Listed Building Consent, which is dealt with separately later
on in this report.

6.1.9

The National Planning Policy Framework notes that the planning system can play an
important part in facilitating “social interaction and creating healthy, inclusive
communities. Paragraph 70 states that “to deliver the social, recreational and cultural
facilities and services the community needs, planning policies and decisions should:

Page 23

● plan positively for the provision and use of shared space, community facilities and
other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential
environments;
● guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly
where this would reduce the community’s ability to meet its day-to-day needs;
6.1.10 Policy 3.16 of the London Plan notes that London needs enhanced social infrastructure
provision to meet the needs of its growing and diverse population. Planning decisions
which provide high quality infrastructure will be supported and such facilities should be
accessible and wherever possible the multiple use of them encouraged.
6.1.11 Section 7 of the Local Plan (2015) sets out policies in respect to Social Infrastructure,
a term encompassing a wide range of facilities such as health provision, nurseries,
schools, colleges, community, cultural, play, recreation and sports facilities, places of
worship, courts and libraries. The policies within the section set out the approach to
safeguarding and improving community provision and support their shared use. Annex
2 of the Plan provides a list of agreed infrastructure strategies and programmes that
will serve to facilitate improved or safeguarded community premises in relation to
libraries as well as other community premises.
6.1.12 Policy S1 of the Local Plan “Safeguarding existing community premises” states that
the council will support and encourage the most effective use of community premises
to address different and changing priorities and needs in the borough. Part (c) of the
policy advises that the change of use between Class D1 use and Class D2 use
(assembly and leisure) will be supported in principle, in order to maintain a flexible
stock of land and premises for social infrastructure. As such the conversion of the
existing library floorspace (Class D1) to a gym use (Class D2) is supported in planning
policy terms.
6.1.13 In terms of the additional floorspace, planning policy likewise does not differentiate
between D1 and D2 uses, whether they be public or private all premises within these
use classes would be regarded as social infrastructure. Policy S2 states that proposals
for new or improved community facilities will be supported where:
i)

The site is appropriate for the intended use and accessible to the
community; and

ii)

The location, nature and scale of the proposal, including hours of
operation, do not unacceptably harm the amenities of the area through
noise, disturbance, traffic congestion, local parking or negative impacts
on road safety: and

iii)

buildings and facilities are designed to be flexible, adaptable and sited
to maximise shared community use of premises where flexible.

6.1.14 The impact on neighbouring amenity will be dealt with elsewhere in the report.
6.1.15 Officers consider that the provision of additional social infrastructure through the
creation of additional useable floorspace is appropriate for this site. The location is one
that has an existing social infrastructure use, is accessible to the community, easily
reached on foot, bike or by public transport and open to all sections of the community
with level access provided to the library. In addition the expansion of the facility and
conversion of part of it to gym use together with other internal changes as proposed
will provide a greater range of community facilities and increase the shared use of this
site in accordance with the NPPF, London Plan and the Lambeth Local Plan.

Page 24

6.1.16 In addition to the above policy compliance, policy D3 notes that: “In order to support
growth in the borough, the council will safeguard and improve essential social, physical
and green infrastructure and work in partnership with service providers to ensure the
delivery of the additional infrastructure”. The Local Plan highlights a number of projects
which are critical to the successful implementation of the plan, including Co-operative
Library and Community Hubs programmes. Annex 2 of the Plan lists the Carnegie
Library/Hub as an infrastructure project to be led by LB Lambeth to facilitate the
“redevelopment of historically significant building to deliver improved library service
provision, community access, enterprise and other uses”. This scheme will accordingly
facilitate an infrastructure project which is viewed as critical to the implementation of
the Local Plan.
6.1.17 This proposal is also referenced as part of a wider strategy for libraries as set out in
the Culture 2020 report produced in October 2015 which outlines the Council’s cultural
plan for the borough. The plan sets out the significant financial challenges to fund
facilities such as libraries in the light of budget cuts and how they could be delivered
differently so that they are safeguarded for the future. One of the foundations for this
plan is a sustainable library service built around 10 libraries, of which 5 including
Carnegie Library would be ‘neighbourhood libraries’.
6.1.18 Residents accessing the service at these neighbourhood locations will experience a
reduction in the physical space and the existing service will be decommissioned to be
replaced with the revised neighbourhood library service. This service will consist of
self-service facilities providing residents with libraries facilities to include book lending,
access to computers and study spaces and free Wi-Fi. Book stock will be planned and
managed by the Lambeth library service on a rotating basis, which will reflect local
needs, culture and community languages. Where the building permits there will be
space for community groups and small enterprises to hire.
6.1.19 In respect of the continued community use of the building, the site will be transformed
into a healthy living centre providing a gym; neighbourhood library, community rental
and small business and location of the library stock management system. In planning
terms it is considered that the land use of the ground floor of the premises would not
materially change from its lawful Class D1 use. The ground floor uses as proposed do
not require planning permission and could be implemented at any time, subject to
securing Listed Building Consent for the physical development works.
6.1.20 The scheme will assist in the facilitation of an infrastructure project which is viewed as
critical to the implementation of the Local Plan. The introduction of the gym will
contribute to the delivery of the project whilst at the same time providing the very form
of community facility the Plan supports.
6.1.21 It is noted that the Carnegie Community Trust (CCT) have responded to the
consultation process in objection to the proposal. The objection has been raised on
the grounds that CCT is currently bidding to Lambeth for a Community Asset Transfer
of Carnegie Library with a view to re-purposing the building as a community hub for
Herne Hill under Lambeth’s 2012 report ‘Enabling Community Asset Ownership and
Management’.

Page 25

6.1.22 The accompanying text of Local Plan Policy S1 paragraph 7.10 states that ‘where
premises have been registered with the council as an asset of community value under
the Localism Act 2011, this is likely to be a material consideration in the determination
of applications for the site for change of use to non-community related use’. Carnegie
Library has been registered as an asset of community value. As noted above a gym is
a community facility and there is an in principle planning policy position in support of
its use. Ongoing discussions in respect of a trust seeking a Community Asset Transfer
do not outweigh policy considerations as outlined.
6.1.23 As stated above, the lawful use of the library falls under Class D1 and as such the
building has permitted development rights to change to another use within that use
class without needing to obtain planning permission. For example, it is possible to use
the current building as a place of worship (a church) without the requirement to seek
planning consent, as both uses falls within the Class D1 use class.
6.1.24 A benefit of the current application submission is that it allows the Local Planning
Authority to introduce planning controls to the lawful Class D1 use by restricting
movement within this use class. Officers are mindful that some Class D1 uses may
have a more harmful impact on residential amenity and local parking conditions that
other uses. It is therefore considered appropriate to impose a condition to restrict the
D1 use class to a library with ancillary community space and community café. A
community management plan will also be secured to ensure the uses are appropriate.
6.2

Design and Conservation

6.2.1

The NPPF states that 'Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better
for people.' The NPPF is clear that Local planning authorities should identify and
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a
proposal (including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset).

6.2.2

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
(“PLBCAA”) provides that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority
shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

6.2.3

Policy Q11 of the Council's Local Plan states that the council will generally expect
proposals to have a design which positively responds to the original architecture, roof
form, detailing, fenestration of the host building and other locally distinct forms; such
features should be respected, retained and where necessary on heritage assets
authentically reproduced. Subordination is also a key consideration when considering
proposals for extensions. Development which unacceptably dominates or overwhelms
the host building will not be supported.

6.2.4

Policy Q20 of the Lambeth Local Plan states that development affecting listed buildings
will be supported where it would (i) conserve and not harm the significance/special
interest.
Proposal
The proposal seeks the excavation of basement to create a gym and a lower ground
rear extension, external staircase and plant equipment.

Page 26

Assessment
Ground Floor
6.2.5

The installation of a new door to the existing stairwell is acceptable, it demonstrates
that minimal damage will be done to the existing glazed tiles to the stairwell.
Basement

6.2.6

The proposed excavation of the existing basement is acceptable in design and
conservation terms. The existing pillars are being retained and will be under-pinned as
part of the proposal. The installation of stud walls for the changing rooms and toilets
are also acceptable as there are no architectural features at this level and the proposed
excavation works would not harm the special interest of the listed building.

6.2.7

The applicant is proposing two extract grilles, one on the side elevation to service the
female changing rooms and one to the rear to service the male changing rooms. The
locations of these extract grilles are suitable as they are located at lower ground on
the least sensitive elevations and will be screened/painted to blend in with the
brickwork/ window frames.
Rear Extension

6.2.8

The proposed rear extension has a contrasting, glazed/contemporary appearance
which sits well within its context. It is set back from the corner of the listed building and
would remain subordinate. Its mono-pitched roof slopes towards a box gutter so the
extension itself is not up against the historic fabric of the listed building. It would be
expected that the non-glazed elements will be constructed from brick to match the
existing. A sample of the proposed brick will be secured by condition if the council are
minded to approve the application.
External Staircase

6.2.9

The proposed installation of a new fire escape staircase is acceptable in principle. The
direction of the existing stairwell will be switched as compared to the present situation.
As the existing staircase is original, the bricks of the host building that it is currently up
against are going to be in need of repair/ or replaced. The bricks of the host rear wall
would need to be made good or replaced to match the existing and this will be
inspected on site. The existing bricks should also be re-used. A condition will be
secured to this affect if the council are minded to approve the application.
Plant Room 2

6.2.10 The location of the proposed plant room is appropriate. It terminates beneath the
existing string cornice, therefore minimising the harm caused to the listed building and
is of a scale appropriate to the context. In order to ensure quality and minimise any
impact on the setting, the final choice of materials will be important. The finished brick
should match the existing. A planning condition in this regard is appropriate so that
Officers are able to review detail before final construction.

Page 27

Plant Compound/Lightwell
6.2.11 The location of the proposed plant compound is acceptable, it will essentially be hidden
from view when in the garden area. The exposed concrete to the host wall should be
rendered and tinted a colour to match the most bricks. It is recommended that this is
secured by condition.
6.2.12 It is noted that the listed description for Carnegie Library was amended for the
perimeter wall and gatepipers on 19th January 2017. The amended description is a
means to clarify what the special interest is of Carnegie Library. The proposal has been
assessed against the amended list description and it would not affect the assessment
of the proposal as the perimeter wall and gatepipers remain unaltered as part of the
proposals. The council’s conservation and design officer was consulted on the
application and had no objection to the proposal on the amended list description.
6.2.13 In light of the above assessment, it is considered that the works would not cause harm
to the character and special interest of the Grade II listed building and as such the
proposals are acceptable and in accordance with planning policies.
6.3
6.3.1

Amenity
Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan states that development will only be supported if
visual amenity from adjoining sites and from the public realm is not unacceptably
compromised, acceptable standards of privacy are provided, adequate outlook is
provided, while undue sense of enclosure and overlooking is avoided and daylight and
sunlight levels to both the host property and surrounding properties are not
compromised.
Daylight and Sunlight

6.3.2

Any sunlight and daylight implication arising from the scheme would be from the
proposed rear extension and external plant compounds. It is considered that due to
the distances to the nearest residential units and the impact from the existing building
there would not be a significant impact in this regard.
Outlook and privacy

6.3.3

With regard to outlook it is considered that the proposed extension and external plant
compounds would not reduce outlook for any neighbouring residential occupiers by
virtue of their location and the distances to nearby residential properties. With regard
to privacy, whilst new windows are inserted to the front elevation of the proposed
extension facing Ferndale Road, the relationship across a public road is comparable
to the already existing situation on this street and no significant loss of privacy will
occur.

Page 28

Noise
6.3.4

Pursuant to Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy Q2, a noise assessment has been
undertaken covering the following:
Construction Impacts

6.3.5

Although most of the works will take place within the existing structure, off site noise
and vibration impacts are anticipated. The removal of excavated soils may give rise to
dust emissions and appropriate mechanisms need to be in place to control this. A draft
Construction Method Statement has been submitted and is considered to include an
appropriate methodology for some elements of the construction and demolition works.
However, further detail is required with respect to measures to fully protect the locality
from the environmental impacts of the construction and demolition phase and a
suitably worded condition is proposed to secure further information such as the
description of the work programme, a named person for residents to contact and
details regarding dust and noise mitigation measures to be deployed including
identification of sensitive receptors. Officers are satisfied that all environmental
impacts can be satisfactorily addressed through the imposition of this planning
condition.
Noise arising from the proposed use

6.3.6

The principle concern with respect to noise is the introduction of an early morning and
late night use on adjoining residential occupiers, including the arrival and departure of
patrons and staff of the proposed gymnasium.

6.3.7

Background noise levels reported in the Noise and Vibration Assessment Report for
Proposed New Mechanical Services Equipment prepared by Philip Acoustics Ltd
indicate that noise levels in the locality are low, particularly in the early morning and
late evening periods.

6.3.8

Gym usage information for weekdays quoted in the Transport Assessment predicts
60% occupancy of the gym between 06:00 and 09:00 hours and a 90% occupancy
between 18:00 and 21:00 hours. The holding of classes may serve to concentrate
patterns of arrival and departure.

6.3.9

To address amenity concerns the hours of operation will be restricted on weekdays
from 07.00 hours to 22.00 hours and on weekends, bank holidays and public holidays
from 08.00 hours to 20.00 hours via a planning condition.
Noise from Mechanical Plant and Equipment

Page 29

6.3.10 The aforementioned noise report is primarily concerned with specification of
appropriate measures to control noise from the proposed plant.
6.3.11 Generally, it is considered that the recommendations detailed in the Noise and
Vibration Assessment Report are appropriate. That said, the actual performance of the
proposed noise mitigation and ventilation scheme requires further assessment and
testing to ensure that it meets the standards identified in the report. The applicant has
stated that the Mechanical Services Engineer has sized the proposed air handling unit
and a/c condensers to accommodate the heating, ventilation and air conditioning
requirements of the fully fitted out gym. Full details, including all the internal ventilation
ductwork and a/c units will be submitted with the Building Control application once the
fit out design is complete. The environmental consultant has confirmed that this is
acceptable and appropriately worded conditions will be attached to minimise the noise
impact from the plant.
Contamination
6.3.12 No information has been provided regarding contamination risks arising from soils to
be removed or asbestos containing materials or other hazardous materials present
within the parts of the structure that are to be altered.
6.3.13 Although risks to end users from contamination are low, the presence of hazardous
substances within the parts of the structure subject to alteration or the soils to be
excavated require assessment and appropriate management through the construction
phase. This is necessary to protect the wider environment from irreversible risks
associated with the contaminants that may be present by ensuring that any
contamination is properly assessed and managed during development. This can be
secured by condition if the Council is minded to approve the application.
Soundproofing
6.3.14 The D2 gym use is below the existing D1 library use with no windows or other openings
to the outside so noise disturbance to the on-site residential units and adjoining
residential occupier’s is unlikely to be an issue. Notwithstanding the environmental
consultant has recommended a condition to control noise from amplified sound at the
nearest residential premises which should address any issues satisfactorily between
the dual uses on site.
6.3.15 Officers consider that the Class D1 and Class D2 uses are compatible land uses, and
that the aforementioned noise control condition would ensure that these uses could
operate without undue disturbance to future users.
6.4
6.4.1

Transport
The NPPF seeks to promote sustainable transport and in doing so it seeks to ensure
that new development which generates significant movements are located where the
need to travel would be minimized and the use of sustainable modes can be
maximized. This is echoed by policies 6.1 and 6.3 of the London Plan which also seeks
to ensure that the impacts of development in transport capacity and the transport
network are fully assessed.

Page 30

6.4.2

Policies T3, T6, T7 and T8 of the Local Plan seek to ensure that proposals for
development have a limited impact on the performance and safety of the highway
network and that sufficient and appropriate car parking and cycle storage is provided
whilst meeting objectives to encourage sustainable transport and to reduce
dependence on the private car. If development would have an unacceptable transport
impact, it should be refused in the absence of mitigation measures to make the
development acceptable.
Accessibility

6.4.3

The site is located in an area with moderate public transport accessibility with a PTAL
of 3. There is a controlled parking zone (Herne Hill ‘N’) but this only operates 12.0014.00 hours Monday-Friday. It is anticipated that the proposed gym will have 1250
members, largely from a catchment area of a 10 minute walking distance. There will
be an average of 300 visits/day to the proposed gym. It is envisaged that most visitors
will walk or use public transport and only approximately 15% travel by car.

6.4.4

A transport statement supporting the application includes surveys of on-street parking
demands for weekday/weekend and results show existing parking stress levels of
between 50% – 60%. The transport assessment has forecast the weekday peak hourly
traffic demand generation for the gym of nine arrival / nine departure vehicular
movements. This level of vehicular traffic would not have a significant impact of traffic
conditions or on parking stress levels on adjacent roads, where sufficient shared
permit/pay and display bays are available.
Cycle Parking

6.4.5

In order to comply with the London Plan cycle parking standards, the proposals include
cycle parking provision for staff (4 spaces) and visitors (8 spaces) for the gym. This
meets London plan standard requirement for 1 space / 8 employees and 1 space per
100sqm for visitors. The location of the cycle store for the staff and visitors provides
the number needed and is considered acceptable. At the same time given the
displacement of the 3 parking spaces previously used by the library, it is considered
that additional cycle parking facilities should be provided for future staff and users of
the retained library/community use. Details of additional cycle provision and its design
will be secured by condition if planning permission is granted.

6.4.6

Car Parking

6.4.7

The three existing library car parking spaces will be removed and the proposal includes
only one accessible car parking space that will be retained for the use of the gym. The
displaced demand from existing car parking could potentially transfer on-street. The
results of the parking surveys indicate that this demand can be satisfactorily
accommodated on-street, subject to the CPZ restriction. It is recommended that a
planning obligation be attached to secure contribution of £10,000 for an additional
disabled parking bay on street that will be required for the library use in line with London
Plan standards. The contribution is for costs of corresponding traffic orders, signage
and on-going maintenance.
Method of Construction and Management

Page 31

6.4.7

6.5

Policy T8 (d) of the Local Plan requires planning applications to be accompanied by a
construction and logistic plan, demonstrating arrangements for construction traffic and
how environmental, traffic and amenity impacts would be minimised. A draft
Construction Method Statement has been submitted and is considered to include an
appropriate methodology for some elements of the construction and demolition works.
However, further detail is required with respect to measures to fully protect the locality
from the environmental impacts of the construction and demolition phase and a
suitably worded condition is proposed if the council are minded to approve the
application. The statement should advise how neighbours will be notified of any works,
and all reasonable measures to protect residential amenity.
Refuse and Recycling

6.5.1

Lambeth Local Plan Policy Q12 relates to refuse and recycling storage and requires
arrangements for waste storage to be integrated into the design of a development from
the outset to ensure that it is attractively designed and conveniently located for users
and collection. In his case, the refuse bins will be located at the southern side of the
building in the single storey rear extension with waste collection from Ferndene Road,
as existing which is considered acceptable.

6.5.2

The refuse storage is located at the southern side of the building in the single storey
extension and collection will be from Ferndene Road as existing. The proposed
refuse/recycling storage does not seem adequate for the library and gym uses. Further
clarification of this storage area would be secured by way of condition. The details
should include how the refuse and recycling provision would comply with the Councils
waste and recycling storage and collection requirements document (October 2013).
Low level of deliveries are expected for the Gym / Library uses and the proposal that
these will take place from on-street, is acceptable. However, further details on
deliveries and servicing will be secured by condition. The refuse store has doors which
are deemed unacceptable by the Council’s Conservation Officer, this is a minor design
detail which could be conditioned if the Council is minded to approve the application.

6.6

Landscaping, trees and biodiversity

6.6.1

The ‘sustainable development’ imperative withint the National Planning Policy
Framework includes enhancing the natural environment and improving biodiversity
(para 7). London Plan 2015 policy 7.19 states that development proposals, where
possible, should make a positive contribution to the protection, enhancement, creation
and management of biodiversity.

6.6.2

Lambeth Local Plan Policy Q9 states that development will be supported where
provision is made for landscaping for future growth and aftercare, existing features are
retained and enhanced, including any habitat as well as creating new ones, maximises
greening opportunity, uses local characteristic species, takes account of existing and
potential routes, provides strong boundary treatments, avoids leftover spaces, are
attractive and provides sustainable drainage and minimises runoff.

6.6.3

London Plan 2015 Policy 7.21 states that trees of value should be retained or if not,
replaced and wherever appropriate, additional planting should be included. Lambeth
Local Plan 2015 Policy Q10 states that development will not be permitted that would
result in loss of trees of significant amenity, historic or ecological value. Trees of such
value need to be retained and protected and positively integrated into the proposal as
well as proposing additional tree planting as part of the development.

Page 32

6.6.4

Three Ash trees and various overgrown shrubs are to be removed to accommodate
the extensions and the new footpath provided to link the Ferndene Road access with
the rear garden. The applicant has provided an amenity assessment of the trees within
the development and three are to be removed as part of the development. These are
category C trees with low amenity value and their removal is considered acceptable in
order to achieve the development. Two mature category B trees and will be retained.

6.6.5

Five new trees are proposed alongside new shrub planting including evergreen shrubs
and nectar-bearing flowering plants. Elements of evergreen planting will be provided
to screen the proposed plant room extension and external compound. The landscaping
proposal is considered to enhance the new building and contribute positively to the
amenity of future users and the character and appearance of the area. The
Arboricultural Officer was consulted on the application and had no objections subject
to conditions of a tree protection and retention plan and professionally specified
landscape scheme and maintenance plan. These matters and will be secured by an
appropriately worded planning condition.

6.6.6

There have been a number of objections regarding the loss of amenity space to the
garden space at the rear of the site, stating that this loss would not comply with policies
Q14, Q6 and EN1 of the Local Plan (2015). The area is used as incidental space to
the library where people will go out to read and also for some young children’s groups
in the summer. In addition, the four residential flats on the site have rights of access.

6.6.7

The area in question is approximately 356sqm of which 124sqm will be lost to facilitate
development. Whilst recognising that the loss of some space is not ideal, the quantum
that will remain at 232 sq.m. will continue to be a positive and useable asset for the
library and the reduction in area would not jeopardise its function. There would still be
sufficient space for library users to utilise this space for reading or for children’s play
space or other such uses. The existing residents’ access rights will be retained.

6.6.8

As this external ancillary space to the library it would not trigger policies Q14 and EN1.
The former policy Q14 is concerned with development in rear gardens of standalone
structures not extensions to buildings as proposed in this instance (policy Q11 is
relevant). Policy EN! Seeks to preserve public or private open space in the borough.
This area is not considered to be dedicated open space (unlike those listed in
paragraph 9.1 of the Local Plan) but rather an ancillary external area/garden
associated with the host building. In any case, this development offers the opportunity
to improve biodiversity and enhance its usability for library users and community
groups.

6.7
6.7.1

Sustainability
Policy EN4 (Sustainable design and construction) of the Local Plan requires all
development to meet high standards of sustainable design and construction, having
regard to the scale, nature and form of the development proposal. Proposals should
demonstrate in a supporting statement that these standards are integral to the design,
construction and operation of the development. Non-residential developments are
required to show how the development would meet the British Research Establishment
Environmental Assessment Methodology (BREEAM) target credit rating of at least
“Excellent” through the implementation of the London Plan Energy Hierarchy of energy
efficiency, decentralized energy and renewable energy technologies (London Plan
Policy 5.2 refers).

6.7.2 A sustainability statement has been submitted with the application. The applicant has
stated that the majority of the building is existing with relatively small new extensions
and there is a high level of interest in maintaining the character of the listed building

Page 33

internally and externally and as such it would not be viable. These factors have a limiting
effect on the types of improvements that can be undertaken to the building, particularly
restricting the inclusion of any sources of renewable energy. However, a condition is
recommended on BREEAM in relation to the new build elements.
6.8

Community Safety/Designing Out Crime

6.8.1 Policy Q3 (Community safety) requires developments to be designed in a manner that
does not engender opportunities for crime or anti-social behaviour or create a hostile
environment that would produce fear of crime.
6.8.2 No information has been provided regarding community safety/designing out crime.
However, this will be dealt with under building regulations approved document Q.
6.9

Flooding, Land Stability and Ground Conditions

6.9.1

Paragraph 121 of the NPPF (2012) states that the development site should be suitable
for its new use taking account of ground conditions and land instability, including from
natural hazards.

6.9.2

Policy EN5(f) of the Local Plan (2015) states that basement proposals shall incorporate
appropriate mitigation measures to ensure the development is safe from all forms of
flooding and does not increase flood risk elsewhere.

6.9.3

The site is located within Flood Zone 1 (not a designated Flood Risk Zone) and it is
considered to be at low risk of flooding. The risks to future occupants are therefore
considered to be low. It is also considered that the development would be unlikely to
increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.

6.9.4

The depth of the basement would be increased in order to provide the necessary 3.0m
floor to ceiling height for the gym use, although the floor area would broadly remain
the same within the existing building footprint. As the site is not within a designated
FRZ and noting the limited extent of the excavation works proposed, it is not
considered reasonable or necessary to require the submission of a flood risk
assessment.

6.9.5

The existing building is detached and officers do not consider that the proposed
excavation works would cause undue harm to local ground conditions, land stability or
the structural stability of adjoining properties.

6.9.6

However, Officers are mindful that Policy Q20 requires that developments affecting
listed building should not diminish its ability to remain viable in use in the long term. As
such, it is considered appropriate to seek the submission of a basement construction
method statement before works commence to the listed building. This will ensure that
the approved works are carried out in a manner that would not unacceptably impact
upon the structural integrity of the Grade II building.

Page 34

6.10

Planning Obligations and CIL

6.10.1 The Local Plan (Policy D4 and Annex 10) sets out the Council’s policy in relation to
seeking planning obligations and the charging approaches for various types of
obligation. For contributions that are not covered by Annex 10, the Council’s approach
to calculating contributions is guided by its July 2013 revised draft S106 Planning
Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) produced for consultation.
6.10.2 The following planning obligations are considered necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms, are directly related to the development and are fairly and
reasonably related in kind and in scale to the development. They are therefore
compliant with the requirements of regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010.
Transport and Highways:
-

Contribution of £10,000 for an additional disabled parking bay on street. The
contribution is for costs of corresponding traffic orders, signage and on-going
maintenance.
Other:

-

Monitoring cost capped at 5% of the total value of the above financial obligations or
£500 if the total financial contribution is below £12,500.

7

CONCLUSION

7.1

Having regard to the above assessment it is considered that subject to the conditions
and S106 clauses set out below the proposed development would comply with the
relevant policies of the development plan, accordingly the applications are considered
appropriate and acceptable for the reasons in this report and therefore are
recommended for approval.

8

EQUALITY DUTY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

8.1

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the need
to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in section 149
of the Equality Act 2010. In making this recommendation, regard has been given to the
Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant protected characteristics (age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual
orientation).

8.2

In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a
way which is incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention on
Human Rights. The human rights impact have been considered, with particular
reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of property), Article 8 (Right to
respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of the
Convention.

8.3

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions and
enforce laws as deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is
considered appropriate in upholding the council's adopted and emerging policies and is
not outweighed by any engaged rights.

Page 35

9

RECOMMENDATION

9.1

Grant Conditional Permission Subject to S106

9.2

Grant Conditional Listed Building Consent

Conditions(s) and Reasons(s)
Planning Permission (Ref: 16/06270/FUL)
Standard conditions
Time period (standard three years)
1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun no later than three years
from the date of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.
In accordance with approved plans
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the
approved plans and drawings listed in this decision notice, other than where those details
are altered pursuant to the conditions of this planning permission.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Pre-commencement
Demolition and construction management
3. No works shall commence, including works of demolition, excavation, and construction,
until a Construction Management Plan (CMP) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The CMP shall have regard to guidance in
BS5228:2009 and include details of the following:
i. An introduction consisting of demolition, excavation, and construction phase
environmental management plan – definitions, abbreviations, and project description;
ii. A description of management responsibilities;
iii. A description of the work programme which identifies activities likely to cause high
levels of noise, vibration, or dust;
iv. A named person for residents to contact;
v. Detailed site logistics arrangements;
vi. Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;
vii. Details regarding dust and noise mitigation measures to be deployed including
identification of sensitive receptors;
viii. An assessment and remediation strategy detailing how any unsuspected
contamination found during the course of works will be dealt with;
ix. Other measures to mitigate the impact of works on the amenity of the area and safety
of the highway network; and
x. Communication procedures with the council and local community regarding key works
– newsletters, fliers etc.

Page 36

The works, including demolition, excavation, or construction, shall thereafter be carried out
in accordance with the details and measures approved in the CMP for the related phase,
unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any variation.
Reason: Development must not commence before this condition is discharged to avoid
hazard and obstruction being caused to users of the public highway and to safeguard
residential amenity from the start of the construction process (policies 7.14 of the London
Plan (2015); and policies EN4, T6 and T8 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Tree protection
4. No works shall commence, including excavation and demolition, until a Tree Protection
Method Statement (including a Tree Protection Plan in accordance with BS5837:2012)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, and until the
measures of tree protection identified in the approved Tree Protection Method Statement
have been fully implemented. The Tree Protection Method Statement shall thereafter be
followed for the duration of works on site, unless any variation has been agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: Development must not commence before this condition is discharged to ensure
the retention of, and avoid irrevocable damage to, the retained trees on and around the
site that represent an important visual amenity to the locality and the wider surrounding
area (policies Q2, Q9 and Q10 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Details to be submitted
Details of materials – new works to southwest elevation
5. Prior to the construction of the extension and alterations hereby permitted on the
southwest elevation, samples and a schedule of the materials to be used shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development
hereby permitted shall be thereafter built in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and it protects
the character and appearance of the listed building (policies Q2 and Q11 and Q20 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Landscaping scheme

6. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a landscaping scheme shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme of soft
landscaping shall include details of the quantity, size, species, position and the proposed
time of planting of all trees, shrubs and hedges to be planted, together with an indication
of how they integrate with the proposal in the long term with regard to their mature size
and anticipated routine maintenance and protection. The landscaping scheme shall be
thereafter carried out in accordance with the approved details within 6 months of the date
of occupation. All tree, shrub and hedge planting included within the above specification
shall accord with BS3936:1992, BS4043:1989 and BS8545:2015 (or subsequent
superseding equivalent) and current Arboricultural best practice.
Reason: In order to ensure high quality soft landscaping in and around the site in the
interests of the ecological value of the site and in the interests of visual amenity (policy
Q2, Q9 and Q10 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015))
Cycle storage

Page 37

7. Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to the relevant works commencing, details of
design and materials used in the provision of cycle parking shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The cycle parking shall thereafter be
implemented in full in accordance with the approved details before the gymnasium (D1)
use or D2 use commences, and shall thereafter be retained solely for its designated use.
Reason: To ensure adequate cycle parking is available on site and to promote sustainable
modes of transport (policies T1, T3 and Q13 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local
Plan (2015)).
Waste storage
8. Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to the relevant works commencing details of
waste and recycling storage for the development shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The waste and recycling storage shall thereafter
be implemented in full in accordance with the approved details before the gymnasium (D1)
use or D2 use commences, and shall thereafter be retained solely for its designated use.
The waste and recycling storage areas/facilities should comply with the Lambeth’s Refuse
& Recycling Storage Design Guide (2013), unless it is demonstrated in the submissions
that such provision is inappropriate for this specific development.
Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the occupiers of the overall development, to
encourage the sustainable management of waste, and to safeguard the visual amenities
of the area (policies Q2 and Q12 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Details of plant

9. Prior to the commencement of above ground works for the relevant part of the
development, full details of internal and external plant equipment and trunking, including
building services plant, ventilation and filtration equipment and commercial kitchen
exhaust ducting / ventilation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The uses served by the equipment shall not commence until the
approved details are fully implemented. The approved flues, ducting and other equipment
shall thereafter be retained and maintained in working order, in accordance with the
manufacturer's instructions, for the duration of the use in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To ensure appropriate appearance and that no nuisance or disturbance is
caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining occupiers or to the area generally
(policy Q2, Q7 and ED7 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Community use plan
10. The use of the gymnasium (D1) use or D2 premises hereby permitted shall not commence
until a community use plan has been submitted and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The uses shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved
details. The submitted details must include the following:
a) details of the D1 uses operating on the site, including any ancillary uses such as the
community cafe;
b) details of the floorspaces occupied by the both the D1 and D2 uses;
c) details of the hours of staff attendance in both the D1 and D2 uses;
d) details of any shared or flexible community use of premises.

Page 38

Reason: To ensure the combination and balance of uses on the site provide a flexible
stock of premises serving the needs of the borough, as well as safeguarding the amenity
of the surrounding area (policies ED7, S1, S2, and Q2 of the London Borough of Lambeth
Local Plan (2015)).
Servicing Management Plan

11. The use of the gymnasium (D1) use or D2 premises hereby permitted shall not commence
until a servicing management plan has been submitted and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The use hereby permitted shall thereafter be operated in accordance
with the approved details. The submitted details must include the following:
a) frequency and hours of deliveries to the site;
b) frequency of other servicing vehicles such as refuse collections;
c) dimensions of delivery and servicing vehicles;
d) proposed loading and delivery locations; and
e) a strategy to manage vehicles servicing the site.
Reason: To avoid obstruction of the surrounding streets and limit the effects of the increase
in travel movements within the locality as well as safeguarding public safety and the
amenity of the surrounding area (policies EN4, T1, T6 and T8 of the London Borough of
Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Design and conservation
Match existing materials
12. All new external work and finishes, and work of making good, shall match the existing
adjacent original work in respect of the, materials, colour, size, texture, profile, and finished
appearance, except where indicated otherwise on the drawings hereby approved, or
unless otherwise required by condition.
Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and it protects
the character and appearance of the listed building (policies Q2 and Q11 and Q20 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Uses
Protect against harmful uses

13. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order
1987 or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or
any orders revoking and re-enacting those orders with or without modification), the D1 use
on the ground floor and part of the first floor shall only be used as a library and for no other
purposes. The flexible community uses and community café within the unit shall only
operate ancillary to the library use.
Amenity reason: To ensure no other uses are introduced into the space which may cause
nuisance or disturbance to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining occupiers or users
of the area generally (policy Q2 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Customer opening times
14. The use of the premises hereby permitted shall not be open to members of the public or
customers other than within the following times:

Page 39

07:00 Hours to 22:00 Hours – Monday to Friday
08:00 Hours to 20:00 Hours – Saturdays, Sundays, Bank Holidays and Public Holidays.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the
amenities of adjoining occupiers or users of the area generally (policies Q2, T6 and ED7
of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Disabled parking and access
15. The accessible car parking space shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to
the commencement of the D1 use on the ground floor and part of the first floor. The parking
space shall be retained for the duration of the use and will not be used for any other
purposes. The level street access for the D1 use, including the lift and access door on
Ferndene Road, shall be retained and remain accessible during opening hours for the
duration of the use.
Reason: To ensure the community use retains accessibility to all, including disabled
people (policy Q1 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Amenity
Noise from plant
16. Noise and vibration from any mechanical equipment or building services plant shall not
exceed the background noise level when measured outside the window of the nearest
noise sensitive or residential premises, when measured as a L90 dB(A) 1 hour.
Reason: To protect the amenities of future residential occupiers and the surrounding area
(Policy Q2 (Amenity) of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
Noise from uses
17. Noise from the gymnasium (D1 use) or D2 premises hereby approved shall not exceed
the background noise level L90dB(A) 15 minutes, when measured from outside the
building.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the
amenities of future residential occupiers or of the area generally (Policy Q2 (Amenity) –
Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
Details of Obscure glazing
18. The new toilets and changing rooms hereby approved shall not be used until details of
internal screening or obscure glazing have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The details should include internal screening/blinds or obscure
glass, to a minimum level of obscurity equivalent to Pilkington Texture Glass Level 3. The
screening or obscure glass shall thereafter be retained for the duration of the development.
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjoining occupiers and to protect the appearance of
the listed building (policies Q2 and Q20 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan
(2015)).

Page 40

Trees and landscaping
Tree retention
19. No trees other than those identified to be removed in the Approved Arboricultural Report,
prepared by David Brown Landscape Design dated October 2016 (trees T2, T3 & T4) shall
be felled, pruned, uprooted, damaged or otherwise disturbed without the prior written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the retention of, and avoid damage to, the retained trees on the site
which represent an important visual amenity to the locality (policies Q2, Q9 and Q10 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Planting seasons and replacement
20. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be
carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the
development hereby permitted or the substantial completion of the development,
whichever is the sooner. Any trees, hedgerows or shrubs forming part of the approved
landscaping scheme which within a period of five years from the occupation or substantial
completion of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and
species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: In order to ensure correct implementation and long-term retention of landscaping
in and around the site in the interests of ecological value and visual amenity (policies Q6,
Q9 and Q10 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Informatives(s)
1. This decision letter does not convey an approval or consent which may be required under
any enactment, by-law, order or regulation, other than Section 57 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
2. Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations, and related legislation
which must be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council's Building Control Officer.
3. Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the requirements of the Control of
Pollution Act 1974 concerning construction site noise and in this respect you are advised
to contact the Council's Environmental Health Division.
4. You are advised of the necessity to consult the Council's Streetcare team within the Public
Protection Division with regard to the provision of refuse storage and collection facilities.
The London Borough of Lambeth's Waste and Recycling Storage and Collection
Requirements: Guidance for Architects and Developers' (May 2006) and the Refuse &
Recycling Storage Design Guide (July 2013) are available on the planning pages of the
Council's website: www.lambeth.gov.uk/planning.
5. You are advised of the necessity to consult the Principal Highways Engineer of the
Highways team on drw@lambeth.gov.uk in order to obtain necessary prior approval for
undertaking any works within the Public Highway including Scaffold,
Temporary/Permanent Crossovers, Oversailing/Undersailing of the Highway,
Drainage/Sewer Connections and Repairs on the Highways, Hoarding, Excavations,

Page 41

Temporary Full/Part Road Closures, Craneage Licenses etc. You are advised to contact
the Highways team at the earliest possible opportunity.
6. The Refuse & Recycling Storage Design Guide (2013) can be viewed on the planning
policy pages of the council’s website.
7. You should have regard to Part M of the Building Regulations and ensure existing
accessibility is retained or improved, and that the new parts are compliance with current
standards. Please contact the Building Control team for further advice on 020 7926 1180.
8. You are advised that all conditions which require further details to be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority need to be accompanied by an application form
and a fee. The application form and fee schedule can be found at
www.lambeth.gov.uk/planning.
Listed Building Consent Conditions (Ref: 16/06271/LB)
Standard conditions
Time
1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning from the date of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91(1) (a) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and Section 51 of the Town and Country Planning Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004.
Approved plans
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
plans listed in this notice.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Pre-commencement
Excavation Method Statement
3. No works of demolition, partial demolition, or excavation shall commence until full details
of the proposed methodology, in the form of an Excavation Method Statement, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The Excavation
Method Statement shall include structural engineer’s drawings and indicate the proposed
method of ensuring the safety and stability of the building fabric to be retained throughout
any period of demolition, excavation, underpinning, and reconstruction. The relevant work
shall be thereafter carried out in accordance with the approved Excavation Method
Statement.
Reason: No works should commence before satisfying this condition in order to safeguard
the special interest of the listed building and prevent irreparable harm or damage to its
special character (policies Q20 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).

Page 42

Design and Conservation Conditions
Details of materials – the listed building
4. No internal or external works to the fabric of the listed building shall commence until
samples and a schedule of the materials to be used has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority. The development hereby permitted shall be
thereafter built in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: No works to the listed building should commence before satisfying this condition
in order to safeguard the special interest of the listed building (policies Q20 of the London
Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Details of materials – new works to southwest elevation
5. No works above ground level relating to the extension and alterations hereby permitted on
the southwest elevation shall commence until samples and a schedule of the materials to
be used has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The development hereby permitted shall be thereafter built in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the works are satisfactory and they protect
the character and appearance of the listed building (policies Q2 and Q11 and Q20 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Match existing materials
6. All new external and internal work and finishes, and work of making good, shall match the
existing adjacent original work in respect of the, materials, colour, size, texture, profile, and
finished appearance, except where indicated otherwise on the drawings hereby approved,
or unless otherwise required by condition.
Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and it protects
the character and appearance of the listed building (policies Q2 and Q11 and Q20 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
Louvred vents materials
7. All new louvred extract grilles shown on the approved plans shall be of the materials, finish
and colour indicated on the plans, and will be retained as such.
Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and it protects
the character and appearance of the listed building (policies Q2 and Q11 and Q20 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
No new pipes etc.
8. No new plumbing, pipes, soilstacks, flues, vents or ductwork shall be fixed on the external
faces of the building unless shown on the drawings hereby approved.
Reason: To safeguard the special interest of the listed building (policies Q20 of the London
Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).

Page 43

Informatives(s)

1. This decision letter does not convey an approval or consent which may be required under
any enactment, by-law, order or regulation, other than Section 57 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

2. Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations, and related legislation
which must be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council's Building Control Officer.

3. Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the requirements of the Control of
Pollution Act 1974 concerning construction site noise and in this respect you are advised
to contact the Council's Environmental Health Division.
4. You are advised of the necessity to consult the Council's Streetcare team within the Public
Protection Division with regard to the provision of refuse storage and collection facilities.
The London Borough of Lambeth's Waste and Recycling Storage and Collection
Requirements: Guidance for Architects and Developers' (May 2006) and the Refuse &
Recycling Storage Design Guide (July 2013) are available on the planning pages of the
Council's website: www.lambeth.gov.uk/planning.

5. You are advised of the necessity to consult the Principal Highways Engineer of the
Highways team on drw@lambeth.gov.uk in order to obtain necessary prior approval for
undertaking any works within the Public Highway including Scaffold,
Temporary/Permanent Crossovers, Oversailing/Undersailing of the Highway,
Drainage/Sewer Connections and Repairs on the Highways, Hoarding, Excavations,
Temporary Full/Part Road Closures, Craneage Licenses etc. You are advised to contact
the Highways team at the earliest possible opportunity.
6. The works hereby approved are only those specifically indicated on the drawing(s) and/or
other documentation referred to above.
7. Listed Building Consent may be required for cleaning operations to listed buildings. No
cleaning of masonry, other than a gentle surface clean using a nebulous water spray, is
authorised by this consent without prior approval of details.
8. You are advised that all conditions which require further details to be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority need to be accompanied by an application form
and a fee. The application form and fee schedule can be found at
www.lambeth.gov.uk/planning.
Background documents – Case file (this can be accessed via the planning Advice Desk,
Telephone 020 7 926 1180).
For advice on how to make further written submissions or to register to speak on this item,
please contact Democratic Services, 020 796 2170 or email.

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

15/01998/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

1-8 Wigton Place
London
SE11 4AN

Addition of additional bedroom and adjacent
shower room to houses 1 and 2 by creating a
new second floor within a loft space, to be added
to the Planning Permission (Ref:14/04219/FUL)
dated 11.08.2014.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

02.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be 1) whether the development would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the Kennington Conservation Area;
and 2) the effect on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers with particular regard to outlook.
On the 1st issue the Inspector considered that proposed roof form of the new second floor would appear incongruous by reason of the bulky design of the mansard roof and the
significant length and height of the dormer window, which would totally dominate the appearance of the mews. In addition, the proposed increase in height of one part of the mews
would unbalance the symmetry of the wider courtyard development. The proposal would dilute the significant of the conservation area and fail to preserve its character and appearance.
The benefit of additional housing would fail to outweigh the harm to the CA.

15/05496/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

43 St Stephen's
Terrace
London
SW8 1DL

Planning permission is sought for the erection of
roof extension to provide a self-contained 2
bedroom flat, a terrace to the front elevation;
increase height of wall to rear elevation.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

06.09.2016

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issues to be i) whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the Albert Square Conservation Area, ii) the effect of
the proposal on the living conditions of nearby residents regards noise and disturbance from the proposed roof terrace, iii) adequacy of bicycles and refuse storage provision, iv) the effect
of the proposal on car parking.
On the 1st issue the Inspector concluded that the set back of the front and sides of the proposal and steep angle of view would prevent the extension from being seen from the nearby
street. The Inspector acknowledged that the upper part of the extension would be visible in longer views both within and outside the CA but considered that the limited projection above
existing walls and the use of dark colour lead would result in it having a very limited affect.
The loss of the butterfly roof was considered acceptable. The Inspector considered that the building stands apart from the neighbouring terrace as a result of its height and design, and it

1

Agenda Item 4

The proposal is for a new flat to be accommodated within a lead-clad flat-roofed "box" within an existing butterfly roof, with a narrow roof terrace provided behind the front parapet wall.

Page 45

On the second issue, the Inspector concluded that the proposal would have an adverse impact on the outlook of the occupiers of adjoining residential properties who would face the
development as the significantly higher roof that the previously built development (2 storey) or the fallback permission (also 2 storey), in such close proximity to the existing properties
would appear overbearing.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

does not share the distinctive architectural detailing or proportions of the other traditional building in the CA. Whilst noting the SPD guidance, he concluded that in light of the specific
circumstances of the proposal the development would not detract from the character and appearance of the host building, and would have a limited effect on the CA which would at least
preserve its character and appearance.
On the 2nd issue, the Inspector took account of the height of the masonry construction of the surrounding walls and considered that the use of the front roof terrace would not be likely
to result in unacceptable noise and disturbance. The parapet wall would prevent overlooking.
On the 3rd issue, the appeal documents included an amended drawing indicating an enlargement of an existing brick enclosure within the rear yard that would accommodate refuse and
recycling storage. The Inspector was satisfied that sufficient space was available to accommodate the facilities.
On the 4th issue, a unilateral undertaking was submitted as part of the appeal documents, as a result of this the Inspector considered that the proposal would not have a harmful impact
on on-street parking in the area.
Refusal - Town
Planning

Woodfield
Recreation Ground
Abbotswood Road
London

Refurbishment of the Woodfield Pavilion
including two new rooflights to the rear pitch of
the roof. Proposed Use to be mixed in the Use
Classes D1 and D2.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

08.09.2016

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issues of the appeal to be whether the proposal promotes sustainable transport options and the effect on on-street parking provision.
On this issue the Inspector noted that the proposed additional uses were ancillary to the existing lawful use of the pavilion. No evidence has been provided by the Council to state which
of the additional uses would potentially increase the level of activity at the site. It was not considered that hours needed to be restricted as this can be undertaken through the
Wandsworth Council lease. The proposed additional uses were not considered to result in an increase in traffic that required a transport management plan to be submitted. The Inspector
agreed that a security strategy is required.
The Inspector went on to grant the appeal subject to conditions.
16/00855/VOC

Conditions Town Planning

The Jolly Gardeners
49 - 51 Black Prince
Road
London
SE11 6AB

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of
planning permission ref 14/06886/FUL (Erection
of a mansard roof extension at third floor level to
provide three additional hotel rooms) Granted on
04.03.2015.
Original condition states: The development
hereby permitted shall be carried out in

2

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

07.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

Page 46

15/04529/FUL

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

accordance with the approved plans listed in this
notice.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the
interests of proper planning
Conditions(s) Variation: Variation of condition 2
(approved plans) to allow alternative roof design

The Inspector considered the main issue of the appeal to be the effect of the amended design of the previously approved mansard roof on the character and appearance on the host
building and the Vauxhall Gardens Conservation Area.

The appellant cited construction difficulties in linking the mansard roof forms of the two building elements, and proposed to retain the pyramid-shaped mansard to the frontage square
element, whilst replacing the mansard to the rear dog leg with a flat roof.
Importantly, whilst the Inspector accepted that in essence the appeal related only to the shape of the rear dog leg part of the roof, the overall effect of the amended design has to be
considered. He expressed reservation with the steep angle of the pyramid element of the design, but accepted that it was mitigated by the traditional and recognisable form of mansard
roof to the rear 'dog leg' element. Without this complementary effect, the overall structure would appear as an incongruous addition to the host building that would harm its character
and appearance, the street scene and the Conservation Area. The harm was identified as less than substantial, but the benefits of extra accommodation and enhancement of the viable
use of the building would not outweigh the harm.

15/01663/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

Hilden House
44 Parry Street
London
Lambeth
SW8 1RU

Erection of a 2 storey extension to existing 4
storey residential building to create a 6 storey
residential building with roof terrace. Addition of
6 No. new self-contained flats, retention of
existing 12 No. flats and remodel of 2 No. existing
flats to increase provision from 14 flats to 20
flats.
Remodelling of existing street frontage; creation
of rear service lift; creation of new cycling and
refuse storage; replacement of side boundary

3

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

30.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

Page 47

The Inspector noted that the principle of the proposed additional storey was not disputed as permission had been previously granted for a double pitched mansard roof extension at third
floor level, resulting in a 'pyramid' shape atop the frontage part of the building ('the square element') with a linked double pitched mansard roof extension to the rear section of the
building facing onto Tyers Street ('the dog leg').

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

wall; removal of first floor doorway and existing
external staircase to side elevation and creation
of new door in rear courtyard at ground floor
level.
The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be 1) The effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area; 2) The effect of the proposal on the living
conditions of existing occupiers or nearby dwellings with particular regard to outlook, privacy, daylight and sunlight; 3) Whether the proposal would provide appropriate living conditions
for future occupiers with particular regard to outlook and quality of the amenity space and 4) Whether the proposal would make appropriate provision for affordable housing.
On the 1st issue the Inspector noted that buildings within the surrounding context have some definition at ground floor level and window patterns are regular with smaller window
proportions typical on upper stories. This contrasted with the proposal which would not have any articulation at ground floor, the fourth floor windows would be wider than they are long,
and the fifth floor windows would be tall and narrow. The Inspector concluded that the overall composition of the front elevation would appear at odds with the surrounding buildings,
and the proposal would resultantly harm the character and appearance of the area.

On the 3rd issue the Inspector accepted that the quantity of amenity space would meet policy requirements. However, the quality of the new amenity space would considered to be
substandard due to poor aspect and the fact that the design approach would have to be managed to ensure privacy. In addition the areas would potentially be unpleasant to use when
noise levels are high. Taken together the Inspector concluded that the areas proposed would not be of a suitable quality to ensure that suitable living conditions would be provided for
future occupants.
On the 4th and final issue the Inspector noted that affordable housing viability appraisal had been submitted with the grounds of appeal, which was not disputed by the council. This
matter was not pursued further. The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

15/06882/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

Office
155 - 157A Clapham
High Street
London
SW4 7SY

Change of use at first floor level from Office (B1)
to residential (C3) with associated alterations and
erection of two storey rear extension at second
and third floor level. Alteration to rear
fenestration and creation of terrace/balcony and
first floor level.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

30.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of the appeal to be 1) the effect of the change of use to residential on provision of business floor space in the borough, 2) impact on the

4

Page 48

On the 2nd issue the Inspector noted "the new mansard roof and balustrade would extend in front of at least two of these windows. In addition the new stairwell, albeit positioned away,
would be taller and immediately in front of a further two. As such the new building would be visible and dominant when viewed from the adjoining property (No 59). As such it would be
harmful to outlook." The inspector therefore concluded that the proposal would have a harmful effect on the living conditions of existing occupiers of nearby dwellings with particular
regard to outlook, daylight and sunlight.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Conservation Area, 3) whether the proposal would provide suitable living accommodation for future occupiers, 4) whether acceptable cycle parking could be provided and 5) whether
there was provision for affordable housing.
On the first issue the Inspector noted that no marketing evidence had been submitted to support the loss of the office space. Furthermore, the appellants had prior approval to convert
the floor space to residential which would be lawful if implemented. The Inspector noted that the appeal was contrary to Policy ED2.
On the second issue the Inspector noted that as the materials of the proposed extension would match the host building and whilst it would not be subservient, the extension would be in
accordance with Policy Q11 and Q22.
On the third issue the Inspector noted that the proposed units on the second and third level would be significantly below the minimum required floor areas and failed to be dual aspect,
resulting in poor aspect and outlook. The proposal would fail to provide suitable living accommodation for future occupiers.
On the fourth issue the Inspector noted that whilst the appellant had provided plans with their appeal to show cycle parking, these still did not show how they would be stored and
secured. As such the proposal was contrary to Policy T3.

The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal due to the unsatisfactory living conditions for future occupiers and the lack of appropriate provision for cycle storage.
16/00244/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

105 Cricklade Avenue
London
Lambeth
SW2 3HF

Retention of and proposed alterations to existing
raised rear patio

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

08.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issue to be the impact of the proposal on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.
On the first issue the Inspector noted that the nature of the submitted drawings were unsatisfactory and inconsistent. The height of the patio would result in significant overlooking to the
rear gardens of neighbouring properties irrespective of the reduction in width of the patio. Despite the proposed privacy screen, views of the rear garden of 103 Crickalde Avenue would
still occur. The vegetation proposed to screen the patio from 107 Cricklade Avenue is inadequate.
The Inspector concluded that the proposal would result in significant overlooking and an unacceptable loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers and went on to dismiss the appeal.
15/06856/ADV

Refusal Advert

121 - 127 Streatham
High Road
London
SW16 1HJ

Display of 2 x single sided internally illuminated
48-sheet LED media display following the
removal of 2no. 48-sheet advertising hoardings.

5

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

29.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

Page 49

On the fifth issue the Inspector noted that the appellant would agree to provide affordable housing however no mechanism had been provided to enable the securing of this provision.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

The Inspector considered the main issue of the appeal to be the effect of the proposal on visual amenity, with particular regard to whether it would preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of the Streatham High Road and Streatham Hill Conservation Area.
On this issue the Inspector considered that the form of illumination would give the proposed advertisements an uncharacteristically bright appearance, especially during daylight hours
when there is currently little discernable artificial lighting, with the present advertisements included. It was considered that this would be at odds with the traditional facade of the host
building and its surroundings, appearing highly incongruous in their prominent setting. The Inspector noted that controlling the brightness of the displays by condition would not
sufficiently mitigate these harms.
Therefore the Inspector concluded that the proposed development would cause harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area, to the detriment of visual amenity. The
appeal was therefore dismissed.
16/00621/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

Erection of 7 three-storey single family dwelling
houses on the land adjacent to Streatham Vale
Sports and Social Club, erection of a new
electrical substation and provision of refuse &
recycling storage and 7 car parking spaces
together with alterations to 56 Canmore Gardens
involving a loft conversion including the erection
of front and rear dormers, erection of a front
porch, erection of a single storey ground floor
rear extension and erection of a first floor rear
extension.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

28.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be:
1) the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the surrounding area having particular regard to the scale, bulk, massing and materials of the proposed
development, including that related to the works to 56 Canmore Gardens, and 2) the provision of refuse / recycling facilities to serve the proposed development.
On the first issue the Inspector noted that the new development in terms of it bulk would be significantly greater than for the surrounding two storey terraces, the massing would fail to
respect the relatively traditional terraces and the roof space design results in an uncharacteristic and dominating design. In terms of the works to No.56, taken as a whole, the extensions
and alterations were considered to be unsympathetic to the character and appearance of the original dwelling, albeit that character has already been eroded by previous alterations. The
proposed rear full width ground floor extension combined with the first floor extension, dormers to front and rear and new exterior finishes were also clearly aimed at providing a
transition to the new build terrace. However, the consequence makes the existing building appear as an awkward mix of the traditional property as it was built and the proposed new
terrace form. They therefore found the latter unacceptable, as it does nothing to justify the works proposed for No.56. Furthermore, the inspector considered that the use of timber on

6

Page 50

Sports Club
Canmore Gardens
London
SW16 5BD

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

the developments front façade would emphasise the uncharacteristic massing of the buildings.
On the second issue the Inspector noted communal recycling and waste compound at the 'entrance' to the proposed terrace of houses would not be an acceptable arrangement by
creating a visual block at the end of Canmore Gardens despite the visual form of the terrace being intended to continue the existing building pattern. It would also not be located well
away from residential accommodation so as to avoid harm to amenity and outlook. The Inspector dismissed the appeal.

16/00654/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

84 Ellison Road
London
SW16 5DD

Erection a single storey rear side infill extension
and installation of three roof lights

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

12.09.2016

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of Ellison Road and the host property.

An application for cost was also made by the appellant against the Council, and the Inspector noted that irrespective of the outcome of the appeal, costs may only be awarded against a
party who has behaved unreasonably and thereby caused the party applying for costs to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process. The Inspector noted that The
Council's report explained that the proposed extension would interrupt the established pattern of development along the street. Whilst The Inspector has reached a different conclusion
as to the effect of the proposal on the street scene, The Inspector considered this to be a matter of judgement and it does not constitute unreasonable behaviour on the part of the local
planning authority. The Inspector when on to refuse the application for an award of costs.
16/02128/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

127 Gipsy Hill
London
SE19 1QS

Conversion of existing residential unit into two
self contained units on the upper floors, involving
the erection of two rear and two front dormer
windows.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

27.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be 1) the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the host property and the surrounding
streetscene 2) living conditions for future occupiers having particular regard to the space provided and accessibility 3) cycle parking facilities and 4) facilities for refuse and recycling
storage.
On the 1st issue the Inspector noted the submitted plans were not consistent with each other but considered that that subject to a condition requiring larger scale details the proposed

7

Page 51

On this issue the Inspector noted that Due to its size and position the proposed extension would be subservient to the existing dwelling. The mono pitch roof would respect and repeat the
form of the existing double storey rear return, resulting in a sympathetic and coherent appearance. Therefore the proposal would not harm the integrity of the host dwelling. Although
the proposal would fail to comply with criterion (h) of policy Q11, it would nevertheless comply with the policy as a whole in that the extension would be of a high quality design and
subservient to the existing building. The proposed extension would not harm the character and appearance of Ellison Road or the host property and would comply with the development
plan as a whole. The Inspector went on to allow the appeal.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

front and rear dormers would respond to their context and the fenestration of the host building, and would not appear harmful in the streetscene. No policy conflict was identified.
On the 2nd issue the Inspector noted that the scheme would not provide adequate space of suitable configuration and height to provide adequate living conditions for future occupiers.
The second floor studio unit would fail to provide any headroom at the minimum height of 2.3m as prescribed in the Nationally Described Space Standards (2015), and would be
unacceptably oppressive and so would not provide adequate living conditions. In addition, the first floor flat would fail to provide at least one bedroom of 11.5sqm. Interestingly the
Inspector was less concerned about the lack of provision of outdoor amenity space, noting that the site is opposite a park which would provide for outdoor recreation albeit not private
amenity space. The Inspector concluded that significant weight must be given to the poor quality living conditions for future occupiers and the resulting conflict with Policy H5 of the
Lambeth Local Plan 2015. Additionally, the Inspector noted that proposal failed to address how the development would achieve inclusive design including wheelchair accessibility and
adaptability.
On the 3rd issue the Inspector noted: The cycle storage facilities which could be achieved might not be ideal or meet the requirements of the London Plan. But, given the scope for an
improvement on the current situation she considered that, were the proposal acceptable in other respects, a Grampian style condition could be imposed to ensure cycle parking, and
access to it, is provided in the rear yard area for the occupiers of the proposed residential units.

16/00121/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

94 Ferndene Road
London
SE24 0AA

Loft Conversion with rear dormer and hip-togable conversion with three rooflights to the
front elevation and the erection of a single storey
ground floor rear extension with the installation
of three rooflights at the rear.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

08.09.2016

Mixed Appeal
Result

The Inspector considered the main issue to be the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the host property and the surrounding area.
The proposed development comprised of two elements. A loft conversion was proposed with additional living space being created by extending the roof area laterally and replacing the
current hip end with a gable. The additional living area in the roofspace would be lit by a rear dormer and three rooflights on the front roof slope. In addition, a single storey, ground
floor, rear extension was proposed.
The Inspector made a distinction between the proposed ground floor rear extension and the proposed changes to the roof. In respect of the former, the Inspector saw no reason why this
should not go ahead. In size and form it meets the criteria set by Policy Q11 and the SPD by being clearly subordinate to the host property. The Inspector also considered that this
extension would not cause any significant harm to the living conditions of the occupants of neighbouring properties by way of overlooking, loss of light or loss of privacy. Furthermore, it

8

Page 52

On the 4th issue the Inspector noted that were the proposal acceptable in other respects, a Grampian style condition could be imposed to ensure satisfactory recycling and refuse storage
for the proposed residential units. The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

would be sufficiently restricted in scale and height to be largely invisible from adjacent properties or from the public realm.
By contrast, the Inspector considered the proposed changes to the roof to be contrary to Policy Q11 and the SPD in a number of respects. The hip to gable conversion would, in the
Inspector's opinion completely alter the character and appearance of the host property. It would produce a dominant and bulky feature that would not only be an incongruous addition
to the host property, but which would also be visible from a number of neighbouring properties. When combined with the rooflights on the front slope, which the Inspector considered to
be excessively prominent, the outcome would be an extension that would visually overwhelm the host property and change its relationship to the street scene.
Accordingly a split decision was made, with the appeal dismissed in respect of the roof extensions and allowed in respect of the rear extension.
16/01300/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

171 Fentiman Road
London
SW8 1JY

Enlargement of the basement with front and rear
lightwells.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

29.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

On this issue the Inspector noted 'The proposal would alter the original form and character of the appeal property by extending the front elevation below street level. It would thus
depart from the uniformity of the buildings, interrupting visual coherency of the terrace as a whole. In terms of the detailed design, the width of the (front) grill would exceed that of the
adjacent bay window on either side, thus appearing out of scale in relation to the building.
The Inspector commented that the proposal would be contrary to Policy Q11 of the Lambeth Local Plan (LP, September 2015), which, amongst other things, resists basement extensions if
they would undermine the appearance of the host building.
In addition, the Inspector concluded that the proposed development would harm the character of the appeal property, and would thus fail to preserve the character or appearance of the
wider conservation area. The harm to the CA was considered to be less than substantial, but there were no considerations that would outweigh the great weight that the NPPF apportions
to the preservation of heritage assets. The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

16/01146/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

60 Fieldend Road
London
SW16 5SS

Erection of a part single/part two storey side
extension and a single storey rear extension
together with a new garage.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

08.09.2016

The Inspector considered the main issues to be 1) the character and appearance of the host property and surrounding area and 2) the living conditions of future occupiers.

9

Appeal
Dismissed

Page 53

The Inspector considered the main issue of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed basement enlargement and front and rear lightwells on the character and appearance of the
conservation area.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

On the first issue the Inspector noted that there is no dropped kerb associated with the proposed garage and this could be addressed through conditions. Concerns were raised with
regard to maintenance of the garage due to the close proximity to boundaries -the Inspector noted that there would be traffic impacts should maintenance be required and would require
highway involvement. The proposed house extensions would result in a bulky feature that would fail to be subordinate to the host building and fail to retain a 1m gap at the boundary,
altering the relationship with the street scene.
On the second issue the Inspector noted that there would be no harm to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers from the rebuilding of the garage.
The Inspector concluded that the proposal would result in material harm to the host property and the character and appearance of the surrounding area and dismissed the appeal.
16/00581/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

506 - 508 Brixton
Road
London
SW9 8EN

Installation of external roller shutters on front
facade (Retrospective).

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

29.09.2016

Appeal
Dismissed

On this issue the Inspector noted that the forward projection of the shutter housing would noticeably protrude past the face of the building, appearing as a bulky and modern intrusion
when viewed from the public realm, detracting from the largely traditional appearance of the upper portion of the building and the wider area. When closed the shutters would mask the
windows, obscuring views in and out of the shop, leading to an unappealing fortress like appearance.
The Inspector concluded that the proposal fails to comply with Local Plan requirements which seek to ensure that proposed building designs and submitted details are visually attractive;
that shop fronts should not have solid or perforated roller shutters or exposed externally-mounted shutter housings; and that development fails to preserve or enhance the character or
appearance of the Brixton Conservation Area.

Allowed

Dismissed

Mixed

Month total

3

11

1

Financial year to date

31

81

3

10

Page 54

The Inspector considered the main issue of this appeal to be whether the proposed development would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the Brixton Conservation
Area.

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/09/2016 AND 30/09/2016
Council ref.

Address

Breach of planning control

Notice type

Decision date

Appeal decision

12/00447/3COU

The Cricketers
17 Kennington Oval
London
SE11 5SG

Without planning permission, the unauthorised change of use of
the A4 (public house) to 6 residential flats (Class C3), 2 at ground
floor level and 4 at first floor level (the unauthorised 6 residential
flats).

EN (Material Change of
Use)

28.09.2016

Appeal Dismissed

The appeal proceeded under grounds (d) and (g), both of which were dismissed by the inspector for the following reasons;
Ground (d) That the use as six flats was lawful;
For the appellant to succeed under this ground of appeal they had to demonstrate, on the balance of probability, that the use as six flats had been ongoing for four years prior to the date
of the notice. The inspector noted that the appellant's evidence was imprecise and ambiguous and there were many contradictions between the evidence provided to the Inquiry and that
produced whilst the council were investigating the breach of planning control. Only a handful of tenancy agreements were provided, many of which were incomplete. As a result this
ground of appeal failed.

Allowed

Dismissed

Mixed

Month total

0

1

0

Financial year to date

1

2

0

1

Page 55

Ground (g) Period for compliance;
The appellant requested fifteen months to secure compliance with the enforcement notice. However no substantive reasoning or evidence was given as to why more than six months was
required as given in the notice. The inspector dismissed this ground of appeal accordingly.

This page is intentionally left blank

